# **CONTENTS**

AIR2
AUCTION RESULTS2
BOOKPOST3
BUILDINGS3
CANCELLATIONS3-4
CHARGE AND EXPLANATORY MARKS4-6
COLLECTIONS6
CROSS & BYE POSTS6
DAILY RECORDS6
EAST CENTRAL DISTRICT7
EXPERIMENTAL CANCELLATIONS7
FELDMAN UPDATES7
FOREIGN BRANCH7-9
FRANKING9-10
GENERAL POST10-12
HOME DISTRICT CANCELLATIONS12
HOODED CANCELLATIONS12
INLAND BRANCH CANCELLATIONS12
INLAND OFFICE CANCELLATIONS13
JAY LONDON CATALOGUE REVISIONS13-14
LATE FEE & TOO LATE14
LOCALITIES14-17
LONDON DISTRICT POST / SUBURBAN17-20
LONDON LOCAL POST20
MACHINE CANCELS20-22
MALTESE CROSS22
MAPS22-23
MARITIME23-24
MILITARY24
MISCELLANEOUS24-28
NEWSPAPER BRANCH28-29
OBITUARIES29
PARCEL POST CANCELLATIONS29

**PENNY POST....29-30** 

POSTAL DIRECTORY / DUTY BOOK....30

POSTMARKS MISCELLANEOUS (excluding cancellations)....30-33

RAILWAY....33

RECEIVING HOUSES....33-34

REGISTERED....34

REPORTS of the POSTMASTER GENERAL....35-36

ROLLER...36

ROYAL....36

SKELETON....36

SLOGAN....36-37

SQUARED CIRCLE CANCELLATIONS....37

THREEPENNY POST....37

TWOPENNY POST....37-39

**ISSUE AND PAGE NUMBERS** 30/6-7 = Issue number 30 pages 6 to 7.

## COMMENTS ON THE DRAFT

Articles in the index are highlighted in each issue – are any significant ones missed out? If the content of articles have been superseded, they are not in the cumulative index.

#### **AIR**

London Balloon Posts 1870-1967 Michael Champness 7/2-3 Perils of Airmail 1939 109/16-18

### **AUCTION RESULTS**

"What the Auctions tell you"

Most have a variety of pre stamp material 1/8 2/7 6/21 9/9 10/16( has a Creswell 12 March 1858 £140) 13/9 20/6

With some ship letters 19/15 27/16 30/6-7

Again mostly pre stamp but a wider range of material with illustrations 30/6-7 36/12-17 48/13-16 (1568 to 1840) 49/6-9 53/13-14

Cancellations:

Experimental machines descriptions 14/13 prices realised 17/13

Cavendish Low number oval auction Nov 2007 169/6-7

Other auctions:

Early handstamps and 20/6,8 (Oz per Oz charge marks 20/8) 48/13-16 49/6-9

1680 Dockwra Broadside 51/19-20

Free Franks Some Items from a Robson Lowe auction 59/20

Receiving House sale Cavendish 2006 164/16-18

#### **BOOKPOST**

Bookpost Precancel forgery 110/12 112/16-17 Halfpenny Book Post 64/18 (possible numerals)

#### **BUILDINGS**

General Post Office 1838 9/16 25/4-10 (Building St Martins le Grand)

General Post Office 1838 view and description excerpt S.Stanaway 9/16 25/4-10

Head Office and Post Houses locations 1526-1687 Jeremy Greenwood 173/11-15

London District Post Offices & maps James Norris 78/1-134

New Post Office 1829 18/9-10 (Opening St Martins le Grand)

New Post Office Illustration 1829 18/9-10

New Post-Office Savings Bank, St. Martin's-Le-Grand 65/16 (Illustration)

Old Home of the Post Office magazine article 1890-1891 A.M.Ogilivie 90/16-20 97/2-8

Old Post Office in Lombard Street, About 1800 65/15

Post Office Buildings and Constructions in London Werner Bauschke 55/9-10

Post Office in 1851 an article 43/17-19 44/3-5 45/15-19

Post Office in 1853 an article 65/3-10

Post Office Two Views in 1835 & 1845 56/2-4

St Martins le Grand activity at 6PM, from "The Nights of London" by H.V.Morton 165/8-10

St Martins le Grand in 1840 an article 47/7-11 49/2 (a correction by Martin Willcocks)

St Martins le Grand opening 1829 PO report 160/12-14

#### **CANCELLATIONS**

"S" = Chief Surveyors Office Mark Samwell 153/16-17 correction 155/15

38 Square date stamp (not the first duplex!) 133/13-14

A01 cancel on unpaid mail from Argentina Ian Warn 28/8

BAE Obliterator for the British Army in Egypt Applied by favour Alf Kirk 64/17

Barred Numeral Cancellations Suburban Offices 1980 LPHG Publications 6

Battersea Cancellation 1894-today 8/2 28/18 English

Berri Handstamp Patent 1860 John Parmenter 52/13

Brockley #23 Dulwich Type Handstamp 37/12 75/4 Alf Kirk

Cancellation of Postal Markings with a I.O. Diamond Mike Goodman 53/11

Cancellations Suburban Offices 1980 LPHG Publications 6

Cancels Duty Book from the early 20thC. 62/2-28

Catford 71 Bookpost Precancel bogus ? 110/12 112/16-17

Coded foreign cancellations FS56 cds 1931 162/6

Cork Cancellations Mike Bavin 70/13

D27 to D56 Chief Office Newspaper Cancels John Hine 50/5

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

Dulwich type handstamp 37/12 (of Sydenham) 75/4 (other offices)

E district Single obliterators RLO use 136/13-15 146 /14-15 Noel Dickinson

Early 20thC. Cancels Duty Book from the 62/2-28

EC and Newspaper Branch new cancellation records Russell Taylor 166/18-19

EC District cancellations Greenwood 19/13 20/11 21/20

Experimental Double Circle Postmarks 1882-1900's Simon Kelly 48/18-20

Experimentals Inland Branch Cancellations from 1856 and Vertical ovals 1981 LPHG Publications 7

Fancy Geometric Postmarks of London Maurice Barette 1994 LPHG Publications 15

Foreign Branch Date Stamp Bristow 36/9

Geometric Postmarks of London Maurice Barette 1994 LPHG Publications 15

Guildhall Penny Postage Jubilee "Star" Cancellations 81/4-6

Halfpenny Book Post cancels 64/18-19

Head Office cancellations, first supplement to London's Postal History 50/19-23

Inland Branch Cancellations from 1856 Experimentals and Vertical ovals 1981 LPHG Publications 7

Inland Office Cancellations 1844-1868 Brian Smith 1992 LPHG Publications 12

Introduction of the London numerals and numbers in cross Howard Hughes 146/18-19

Kent in London draft catalogue of Barred Numeral Cancels –152

London Foreign Section Datestamp FS15 1909 Mike Goodman 71/15

London Gazette cancel 1901 27/17 86/19 Elkin P.J. W.V.Evans 27/17 86/19

London Offices that Used Barred Numeral Cancels – draft of Kent Parmenter 152/1-19

London Offices that Used Barred Numeral Cancels – draft of Surrey Parmenter 150/1-12

London Offices that Used Barred Numerals-draft of Middlesex Parmenter 147/13-41

Maida Hill Duplex 1887 Norman Mousdon 65/4

Middlesex in London draft catalogue of Barred Numeral Cancels 147&8/13-41

Milled Edge Postmarks a classification Michel Letaillieur 75/16

Milled Edge Postmarks a classification 74&75/16-17

Modern Fancy Cancellations Jack Peach 71/9-11

Newspaper Precancels 29/19

Newspaper Branch Roller John Forbes Nixon 58/12

Number 38 Square date stamp (not the first duplex!) 133/13-14

Numeral Cancellations Suburban Offices 1980 LPHG Publications 6

Obliterators Used to Cancel Other Marks Robert Johnson 6/18 38/20 39/8 61/11

Paddington Station 6d Late Fee 1855 049 cancel Keith Romig 137/34-35

Pearson Hill in India G.A.Viner 53/11

Precancellation Stamps Overseas Daily Mail Peter Forrestier Smith 75/5

Putney – Walker collection 137/2-31

Queen Victoria Street Office (#16) is actually 47 Cannon Street 52/4 99/17-18

R1 code for SE Express Sorting Office 1959 31/4

Returned Letter Branch vertical oval obliterator 1898 Mike Goodman 63/17

Returned Mail from Abroad FS 20 cancel 1910 John Sharp 30/5

Rideout Machines Second Trial Oct 1866 #1 Jerry Miller 129/32

Roehampton – Walker collection 137/2-31

Roller Cancel number 76 in a diamond 38/10 40/16

SE District Suburban and Provincial numerals Peter Bathe 48/10

SERPO London Bridge Station late fee duplex Keith Romig 137/36

Single cancels Dr.R.H.Champion 145/14

Southwark, a Postal History Alf Kirk 57/1-20 108/16 111/16-19

Square Circle Geometric Postmarks of London Maurice Barette 1994 LPHG Publications 15

Surrey in London draft catalogue of Barred Numeral Cancels 150/1-12

SW18 duplex with multiple cuts in bars Frank Lane 169/16

Unnumbered Maltese Cross cancels in London 33/9 36/8

Unpaid Letter From Abroad Robert Johnson 64/16

Use of Obliterators used to cancel a Charge Mark Chris Pearce 6/18 61/11

Vertical ovals Inland Branch Cancellations from 1856 and Experimentals 1981 LPHG Publications 7

## CHARGE AND EXPLANATORY MARKS

10d underpaid mail from USA 1876 Robert Johnson 137/43

Auction realisations Oz per Oz charge marks 20/8

Bishop Mark Too Late John Brindley 49/14 51/12 "Far Too Late" 51/14

Charge for Redirection 1893 Bruce Auckland 53/12

Charge Mark, Use of Obliterators used to cancel 6/18-20 61/11

Charge Marks of 1854 < Could Not Afford the Penny Stamp> 26/4-6

Charge marks RL auction Aug 1974 20/8

Charge not paid handstamp Robert Johnson 58/13

Charges on returned mail 113/9 114/19 Robert Johnson

Columbia Slogan "Received From HM Ships No Charge to be Raised" R.A.Keneally 49/3

Croydon Registered cover 1938 158/8

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

Dead Letter Office 24/7 1821 to 1838 117/7-9

Erasure Marks of the 2dP Adams 33/20-22 38/9 59/17

Explanatory and Charge marks, a classification by R I Johnson 8/17

General Post Instructional / examiners /charge marks Traudl collection 139/43-52

General Post Instructional Marks Hess Collection 92/30-34

Hand Struck Boxed "Returned Letter" and PO notice 1820 129/11-12

Hounslow Cross Post explanatory marks Peter Bathe 168/16-20

Instructional & Charge marks Penny & Twopenny Posts Jay Catalogue revisions 161/15-26

Instructional marks Penny & Twopenny post Grace Dove collection 101/68-83

International Postage Due 1970's G.R. Stevens 42/8

London Missort Marks 1858 – 1955 English 19/5 20/7 64/13

More To Pay 1833 Jay update 129/17-19

More To Pay handstamp 1869 71/11

Newspaper Branch Charge Mark 1897 Michael Goodman 109/12

Obliterators Used to Cancel Other Marks Robert Johnson 6/18 38/20 39/8-15 61/11

Out of Date Redirection 1939 Simon Burke 87/10-11

Oz per Oz handstamps 20/8 136/7

Penny Post Charge marks, in Jay County Catalogue revisions 161/15-26

Postage Due from abroad 1871 and 1882 Questions Keith Romig 71/5

Posted on board ship abroad..1932 handstamp....4/11

Posted Out Of Course Mike Goodman 61/9 64/20 66/20 117/17-18

Prepayment of Postage in 1854 26/4-6

Received From HM Ships No Charge to be Made Peter Collins 51/13

Redirection charge in the 4d post period 50/3

Request for payment of postage due, printed form Foreign section 1941 145/17-18

Returned Letter Stamps from the Proof Books Robert Johnson 32/18-26

Returned Letter Stamps postcard to France Robert Johnson 32/18-26 35/11

Rotherhithe charge mark 1906 70/14

Twopenny post charge cancelled 48/5

Twopenny Post Instructional Marks Hess Collection 92/77-82

Twopenny Post L643 charge mark 1802 158/3

Twopenny Posts Charge marks in Jay County Catalogue revisions 161/15-26

Undelivered in time of War, Robert Johnson 7/4-12 16/17 17/14

Undelivered Picture Postcard 1905 Kenneth Sargeant 43/2

Undelivered post card to France 1875 50/6

Underpaid Mail Going Abroad Robert Johnson 71/14

Underpaid Mail, Dutch Scheme of Payment parcel to Holland 75/26 76/17

Underpaid post card 1877 Robert Johnson 131/11

Underpaid post card, "private" in manuscript, 1877 131/11

Unusual explanatory marks in the Proof Books 1880-90's Robert Johnson 18/16-17

Use of Obliterators used to cancel a Charge Mark Chris Pearce 6/18 61/11

Wallington Charge marks Andrew Ford 155/16-19

Waltham Cross 5d Charge Mark 80/20

Why a Foreign Section Halfpenny Charge on a 1932 post card? 166/19-20

Woolwich charge marks Peter Bathe 160/15-18 repeated in 166/12-15

Wrapper from India, Found in Inland Section Without Contents 1948 Simon Harris 73/5

#### **COLLECTIONS**

Barrie Jay collection 151 (was issued on a CD I need to find a good copy and download it)

Grace Dove collection London 1569 to 1839 101 to 106

H. G. Fletcher Collection - Transfer to British Library 90/10-11

Hess collection 1661 to 1840 92/1-86

Jerry Miller's Machine postmark collection 1857 -1901 163/2-20 (corrections 1-4)

PO archive, on acquiring items from the Traudl collection 139,144/2-10

Putney – a collection Vic Walker 137/2-31

Roehampton – a collection Vic Walker 137/2-31

Sue Hopson: Free Fronts collection 164/2-6

Traudl collection 139 to 144/2-10 (Summary) 11-141 (main collection)

Walthamstow a collection 167/3-25

#### **CROSS & BYE POSTS**

Beddington to Croydon Bye letters 146/4-7

Bye Posts and Cross Posts of London Peter Bathe 1992 LPHG Publications 13

Bye Posts, new, an 1811 report 23/11-15

Cross and Bye Posts 6/11 (3 new + map) 30/13-14 41/2-13 (1830's)

Cross and Bye Posts corrections by Peter Bathe 42/19

Cross and Bye Posts Bathe Peter Forrestier Smith 6/11 30/13 41/2-13 42/9

Cross Post and Franking, Uniform Fourpenny Post period Mike Jackson 71/3-4

Cross Posts and Bye Posts of London Peter Bathe 1992 LPHG Publications 13

Croydon Cross Post Peter Bathe Arthur Moyles Peter Forrestier Smith 132/11-13

Croydon to Beddington Bye letters 146/4-7

Deptford & Shooters Hill Cross Posts Peter Bathe 155/14-15

Deptford Cross Post by Peter Bathe 86/14-16

Greenwich mis-sort by eletter Peter Bathe 113/3-5 114/15-17

Hess Collection Cross and Bye Posts 92/75-76

Hounslow Cross Post explanatory marks Peter Bathe 168/16-20

London Cross and Bye Posts Jay Catalogue revisions 161/27-29

London Cross Posts 6/11 (3 new + map)

London District Post Delivery in 1852 (see base of page 20) 46/19-20

London Rides & Bye Posts 1811 23/11- 15

Portsmouth Road Cross Post Twopenny Post Holliday 31/12

Shooters Hill Twopenny Post Correction of a map Bathe 34/14-15

Shooters Hill & Deptford Cross Posts Peter Bathe 155/14-15

Shooters Hill and the Dover Mail Bathe 27/2

Tottenham CSO date error - 3 days from Tottenham to Glasgow 113/13-14 114/9-10

Waltham Cross Penny Post 129/23-25

## DAILY RECORDS EC, FOREIGN BRANCH and DUTY BOOK

These cover all categories not just East Central District and the Foreign Branch

Cancels in a Duty Book from the early 20thC 62/2-28

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

Postal Directory 1850 [treble issue] covers all aspects of the Post 83/85

#### EAST CENTRAL DISTRICT

Cancels Duty Book from the early 20thC. 62/2-28

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

EC Blind Duty Stamps available in 1978 36/10

EC District cancellations in the 1905 Proof Books Greenwood 18/15 19/13 20/11-12 21/20

EC District duplex use of each number Sep 1906 Greenwood 18/15

EC District Proof Impression Books 6 from 1897 up to about 1957 5/18

EC Obliterators Westley/Dubus and the Proof Books 21/5-8

EC Obliterators Westley/Dubus/Proof Books Parmenter 21/5

Hooded cancels Simon Kelly 26/16 115/3-10

New EC District Proof Impression Books 1897 – 1957 Rigo de Righi 5/18

Postal Directory 1850 [treble issue] covers all aspects of the Post 83/85

Postal District / EC Envelope 1860 Simon Burke 87/8

Returned Letter Duty Handstamp 55/16-17 136/13-15 136/13-15 146 /14-15

Whitecross Receiving House Alf Kirk Keith Romig 57/1-20 108/16 111/16-19

#### **EXPERIMENTAL CANCELLATIONS**

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

Date Code Letters of London Scrolls and Double Circles Maurice Barette 54/6-8

Early Maltese Cross cancellation trials in black 1840 14/3

Experimental Cancellations (an early summary) 8/4-9 9/1-3

Experimental Double Circle Postmarks Simon Kelly 48/18-20

Experimental Handstamps (an early summary) 12/7

Experimental machines at auction 14/13 (descriptions) 17/13 (prices realised)

Experimentals Inland Branch Cancellations from 1856 and Vertical ovals 1981 LPHG Publications 7

Hoster, Charing Cross 54/5

Hoster, Unrecorded 16/11 17/10

Inland Branch Cancellations from 1856 Experimentals and Vertical ovals 1981 LPHG Publications 7

Jerry Miller's Gold medal collection 1857 -1901 163/1-20 and corrections supplement 163S/1-4 also see separate pdf in colour in the section OTHER LPHG PUBLICATIONS

Pearson Hill Codes Again! Homer-Wooff 51/3-7

Pearson Hill First Type 39/4

Pearson Hill in India? 53/11

REX Experimental machine, 14/12

## **FELDMAN UPDATES**

First tranche of a detailed working paper 108/unnumbered page 25 onwards

London Letter Receivers No. 1 146/2 No 2 149/5-6 No 3 158/11-12 No 4 161/6

## **FOREIGN BRANCH**

124 to 126 Daily Records and Orders London EC 1921-1939 Triple Issue

A01 cancel 28/8

BAE Obliterator for the British Army in Egypt 64/17

Boer War South Africa Mail: Richard Stroud & Robert Johnson 156/18-19 160/3-11

Catford 71 Bookpost Precancel bogus ? 110/12 112/16-17

Coded foreign cancellations FS56 cds 1931 162/6

Crown on a Sunday 1798 Michael Scott Archer 76/21

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

Datestamp RMW 660& 649 Maurice Bristow 36/9 38/11

Detained for Postage in 1788 58/9

Double 81 diamond 100/21-22 112/7 145/11-12 on internal PC 164/19

Dummy Mail 1996 129/39

Dutch Scheme of Payment, underpaid air mail 1982 75/26 76/17

FBGPO handstamp with Crown 1895 52/19

Foreign London Postal Service Tombs 1891 67/19

Foreign and Colonial Service 20th Report of the PMG 1876 89/18

Foreign Branch Jay update London Catalogue 158/15-28

Foreign Branch Datestamps RMW 660 36/9 RMW 649 38/11

Foreign Branch Free stamps Jay article 127/4-7

Foreign Branch Free Stamps Jay update London Catalogue 96/4

Foreign Branch Mails meeting report 18/13-14

Foreign Branch Quartered Circle Stamps 1864 – 1900 by Michael Scott-Archer 98/1-23

Foreign Office Stamp "P.P." 1794 & 1795 82/13

Foreign Office: Traudl collection 139 to 144/122-139

Foreign Section Dummy Mail 1996 129/39

Foreign Service 16th Report of the PMG 1870 89/17

FP Unrecorded 1795 & 1829/30 87/5 90/12 100/2-3

Free London cds Trevor Davis 129/29 131/16-17

Free Stamps Jay update London Catalogue 96/4

Free stamps Barrie Jay 127/6-7

FS56 code in cds 1931 162/6

FTS postmark not Foreign Section ±1960 117/19

Grace Dove collection Foreign Branch 101/100-116

Hooded cancels Simon Kelly 26/16 115/3-10

Incoming Registered mail 1805 131/5-9

Inspector's stamp missing adhesive 1904 133/17

Instructional Stamps of the F.O. Grace Dove 87/5-6

Jay update Foreign Office County Catalogue revisions 158/15-28

Letter from Italy via France a returned letter Frank Lane 169/16

London Foreign Section Datestamp FS15 1909 Mike Goodman 71/15

London Overseas Parcels Mail Office 1978 39/5&6

Mails From France 1815 & 1836 G.Oxley 127/24-25

More To Pay handstamp 1869 71/11

New Free 1817 Lovegrove 32/2-3

Newspapers for Russia 1864 Official notice 36/19

Overseas Registered Mail to France 1822 Martin Willcocks 131/3-5

Oz per Oz handstamps auction realisations 136/7

Oz per Oz handstamps auction realisations 20/8

Parcels for Neutral European Countries Robert Johnson 39/16

Post Office Regulations (1848) from Letts diary 73/13-16

Postal Directory 1850 [treble issue] covers all aspects of the Post 83/85

Quartered Circle Bagging Stamps 1864-1900 Michael Scott Archer 88/2-4

Quartered Circle Stamps 1864 – 1900 by Michael Scott-Archer 98/1-23

R1 code for SE Express Sorting Office 1959 31/4

Receiving Houses within 3 miles of the General Post Office 1840 9/10-14

Request for payment of postage due, Foreign section 1941 Mike Goodman 145/17-18

Returned Mail from Abroad FS 20 cancel 1910 John Sharp 30/5

SS postmark on 1817/19 mail from Switzerland Peter Forrestier Smith 116/4-7

Stamps Used in The Foreign Department 1815-1858 Grace Dove 86/8-12

Traudl collection 139/122-139

Twopenny Post Ship Letters Lafford 39/3-4

Underpaid Mail Going Abroad Robert Johnson 71/14

Unpaid Letter From Chile 1880 Robert Johnson 64/16

Why a Foreign Section Halfpenny Charge on a 1932 post card? Mike Goodman 166/19-20

Wrapper from India, Found in Inland Section Without Contents 1948 Simon Harris 73/5

#### **FRANKING**

#### LOVEGROVE / JAY

1807 to 1840 a classification Jim Lovegrove 39/6&7

1807 to 1840 classification can be improved Lovegrove 38/2

Charlie Coulson of the Franking Office in the 1780/90's Jim Lovegrove 13/7-8

E code frank 1837 Jim Lovegrove 14/11 15/14

Foreign Branch Free Stamps, Barrie Jay update London Catalogue 96/4 127/4-7

Franking system and the General Post Jim Lovegrove 48/3

Franking System, Barrie Jay County Catalogue London revisions 154/2-10

Free Handstamps of the London Ship Letter Office Barrie Jay 127/4-7

Herewith my Frank supplements by Jim Lovegrove 28/2 28/16 30/10 31/2 32/3 34/16 38/2 39/6&7 40/16 42/13 48/3

Jay Foreign Branch Free stamps 127/6-7

Jay update Late Fee Stamps: L 36 to L 41: L 36 to L 41 Jay County Catalogue revisions 157/9

New Free 1817 Lovegrove 32/2-3

New Postmarks 1800/1804 Lovegrove 13/2

New South Wales postmark Lovegrove 30/10 Correction to 28/2

O code James Lovegrove 28/16

O code James Lovegrove 115/19-20 146/7-9

Review of Lovegrove supplement #2 42/13

#### **FRANKING**

### OTHER AUTHORS

1820 PO notice Franks Francis Freeling 5/18-20

Bombay via Falmouth Packet 1839 162/11 164/5 James Grimwood Taylor

Bromley Kent Franking and the Twopenny Post Michael English 9/7-8

Chamfered Corner Free Mark 1831 7/13 11/11

Chelsea Hospital & Postal Charges 40/4-6 97/13-16 108/7-9

Cross Post and Franking Mike Jackson 71/3

Delivered Free to Lord of the Treasury, Chancellor of the Exchequer, & the King 172/19-20

Dioceses of bishops with "traditional" names on Franks John Colton 165/14-16 and 18-20

Franking & Twopenny Post 1808 46/10

Franking & Twopenny Post, who got the frank 1808 46/10

Franking Privilege Chelsea and Greenwich Hospitals 40/4 97/13-16

Franking Regulations Ignored John Sharp 43/10

Franking System Traudl collection 139/34-42

Franking System 1784 George Crabb 9/10 10/14

Franking System in London 1764 – 1840 Frank Bottomley 5/2-15

Free At London cds 1850 131/16-17 (129/29 missing)

Free frank confusion, East India Company 110/15

Free Frank on mail to Bombay via Falmouth Packet 1839 162/11

Free Franks Hess Collection 92/15-19

Free Franks in the Twopenny Post Hess Collection 92/83-85

Free Letters & Franks: Some Items from a Robson Lowe auction 59/20

Free London cds 129/29 Trevor Davis 131/16-17

Grace Dove collection Franked Letters 101/84-99

Greenwich Hospital Franking Privilege 40/4 97/13-16

Hess Collection Free Franks 92/15-19 92/83-85

JL 14 1799 (FREE handstamp with triangular rays) reaches £1,000 55/6

Late Free Stamps, after 9 Jan 1840 113/8 114/6

Mail missing in the Post Michael Champness 114/4

Mail to the Cape of Good Hope 1815 – 1818 65/13 66/11 Michael Scott Archer

Method of endorsement for Free Franks 1700's John Scott 165/11-13

Newspapers Sent by Post, Early MP's "free" 1790-1825 127 21/22

O Alf Kirk 5/16

O code 115/19-20 146/7-9

O code forgeries James Grimwood Taylor 146/7-9 115/19-20

O code Sideways 1839 Wooff 18/2

Official mail after Franking ceased in 1840 – codeless crowns James Grimwood Taylor 149/12-15

Parliamentary enquiry, Freeling Free printed envelope 1820's & 1830's 108/9-10

Posted within 3 miles of GPO handstamp 1856 25/13

Rates for Government mail after Franking ceased in 1840 – codeless crowns 149/12-15

Sue Hopson: Free Fronts collection 164/2-6

Traudl collection 139,144/34-42

#### **GENERAL POST**

"Second Penny Paid" A major prestamp discovery 1785 86/3-5 87/4 (transcript)

1794 Reforms from the Presidents Order Book 32/17

A instructional mark 116/7-8 117/6-7

Bishop Mark, Too Late 49/14 51/12 "Far Too Late" 51/14

Branch Office costs 1831 162/8-9-10

Branch Offices of the General Post 29/7 31/14 33/16-19 John Sharp

Consolidation of the General and Two Penny Post Receiving Houses Dec 1838 114/13-14

Country Sorting Offices 1811-1840 Jay 6/9-11 159/18 & 19

Court Mail by Sir Peter Horsley and Jean Farrugia 60/1-19

Cross and Bye Posts 6/11 30/13 41/2 42/9

Crown on a Sunday 1798 76/21

Croydon Penny Post to a Post Town 1712/13 Arthur Moyles 116/2-3

Croydon, mis-sent to 1802Andrew Ford 136/2-3

English Handstamps on Foreign Mail, 1667 – 1740 66/17-19

Experimental Paid Stamps 1794 129/8

General & London District Post in 1849 excerpt Brian Smith 133/10-13

General and Local receiving Houses 1791 John Adams 13/18-19

General Post 1661 to 1858 Jay County Catalogue revision 157/2-21

General Post Branch Offices: L 44 to L 57b Jay County Catalogue revisions 157/10-11

General Post Branch Offices, Paid Stamps: Jay County Catalogue L 130 to L 144 157/20-21

General Post Date Stamps Hess Collection 92/4-14

General Post Date Stamps: L 1 to L 23b Jay County Catalogue revisions 157/3-7

General Post Date stamps: Traudl collection 139,144/12-22

General Post Handstamps in the Proof Books Michael English 7/16

General Post Instructional Marks Hess Collection 92/30-34

General Post Office 1838 ex Ladies Home Journal 9/16 25/4-10

General Post Office circular date stamp mystery 1845 & 1847 Michael Goodman 109/6-7

General Post Paid marks: Traudl collection 139/23-27

General Post Paid Stamp of 1798 GraceDove 64/4&8

General Post Paid Stamps: L 90 to L113 Jay County Catalogue revisions 157/16-19

General Post Receivers 1792 list Alf Kirk 82/5

General Post Receiving House dated 1708 in Ormond street Phillipa McIntosh 108/2-3 166/8

General Post Receiving Houses 1661 to 1792 Jay update London Catalogue 96/5-10

General Post Receiving Houses: L 60 to L 86e Jay revisions 157/12-15

General Receivers initials 1840 9/10 19/2-3

Grace Dove collection Early letters and datestamps 101/5-19

Grace Dove collection Paid and Not Paid marks 101/37-51

Head Office and Post Houses locations 1526-1687 173/11-15

Hess Collection General Post Date Stamps 92/4-14

Hess Collection General Post Instructional marks in the 92/30-33

Hess Collection General Post Receiving Houses 92/20-23

Hess Collection Post Paid Stamps 92/24-29

Improved Organisation 1854 1/10

Inspectors Mark L and the General Post 1840's O.F.Embery 40/2

Instructional marks General post Grace Dove collection 101/52-67

Instructional marks Penny & Twopenny post Grace Dove collection 101/68-83

Islington not transferred to the Town Area in 1829 116/12

J Code or Not Bishop mark 69/18 70/17

Kensington Twopenny Post & General Post 16/4

Late Fee Stamps: L 36 to L 41 County Catalogue revisions 157/9

Location of the Head Post Office 1526 to 1687 Greenwood 13/3-5 17/1

London General Post Receivers 1660-1838 by Hugh V. Feldman 107/1-27

London General Post receivers 1742 – 1792 Greenwood 26/11

London Money Order Offices 1846 Champness 34/2

London Postal History 1569 to 1839, the Grace Dove collection issues 101 to 106

Mails after the Great Plague 12/13

Manuscript Receivers Marks 69/20 75/18-25 99/2-4

Merge Twopenny and General Post Letter Carriers 1837 173/2-10

Merging the General and Twopenny Post 1838 61/29 64/9

Mileage marks& rating of letters through London 100/7-16

Mitcham Provincial Style Date Stamp 1856/57 129/28

Mulready de Luxe with London Ship Letter Paid Stamp 64/10

New date stamp, mail transferred to General Post 1823 116/8

New General Post Discovery John Beverage 88/10

New GP mark a General Post discovery 88/10

Newspaper cuttings 1842 to 1843 George Crabb 108/13-14 113/10

Notice to the Public 23 December 1843 129/26

Ormond Street Receiving House 25/11 26/9 28/20 108/2 158/14

Paid Stamps of the General Post 18/21-26 (supplement 1-6)

Partington Receiver his address 1752 to 1783 Kirk 20/7

PO Notice General and Two Penny Post Receiving Houses merged Dec 1838 114/13-14

Post Office Accelerator (a horse drawn vehicle) 20/9

Post Office Accounts 1846 and their relation to Letters Johnson 32/11

Post Office notice Separate General Post from Twopenny Post Letters 1838 61/20

Post Paid Stamps Hess Collection 92/24-29

Postal Directory 1850 [treble issue] covers all aspects of the Post 83/85

Putney –Walker collection 137/2-31

Receiving House auction realisations 2006 164/16-18

Receiving House Locations 1794 38/3

Receiving House Namestamps 1650's-1840 Michael English 6/12-16 7/14-15

Receiving Houses 1792 82/5

Receiving Houses Jay update London Catalogue 96/5-14 Receiving Houses Traudl collection 139,144/28-33

Receiving Houses 1742 – 1792 Jay 26/11-15 Receiving Houses Hess Collection 92/20-23

Receiving Houses: L 60 to L 86e Jay Catalogue revisions 157/12-15

Receiving Houses 1845 list 18/3

Receiving Houses within 3 miles of the General Post Office 1840 9/10-14

Roehampton – Walker collection 137/2-31

South Audley St SO, new receiving house stamp 1839 108/13

St Martins Lane Receiving House 1811 97/11-12

St Martins le Grand activity at 6PM, from "The Nights of London" by H.V.Morton 165/8-10

St Martins le Grand opening 1829 160/12-14

Sunday Date Stamps: L 25 to L 34a Jay County Catalogue revisions 157/8-9 Sunday Paid Stamps: L 120 to L 123 Jay County Catalogue revisions 157/19

Tottenham Receiver complaining of poor pay 1804 145/4-5

Traudl collection General Post date stamps: 139/12-22

Traudl collection General Post Receivers: 139/28-33

Twopenny Post and General Receiving Houses 1840 9/10 19/2

Uniform Postage Hess Collection 92/35-36

Unpaid marks of the General Post 22/11 24/11 25/3

Unrecorded Hand Struck Boxed "Returned Letter" 1820 129/11-12

Unrecorded Westminster Office erasure mark 1803 109/2

Waltham Cross 5d Charge Mark 1836 to 1839 Barrie Jay 80/20

Wimbledon new 3d paid stamp 1836 Don Franks 116/14

#### **HOME DISTRICT CANCELLATIONS**

Home District cancellations 1934-1939 Pat Harding 16/12 17/2 17/4

### HOODED CANCELLATIONS

"Scroll stamps" 26/16-21

Cancels Duty Book from the early 20thC. 62/2-28

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

EC District cancellations Greenwood 19/13 20/11 21/20

Hooded cancels Simon Kelly 26/16 115/3-10 a revised summary

Hooded cancels new developments Kelly 115/3-4

Hooded Late Fee #8 new report 1911 Robert Johnson 161/7

Hooded Royal Postmarks Simon Kelly 127/29-31

Redirected Mail R5 hooded John Chandler 36/3 55/11

Telegraphic/Asterisk code trials in 1892 Simon Kelly 115/2-3

Which were the First Scrolls 1833? or 1878 Maurice Barette 56/9

#### INLAND BRANCH CANCELLATIONS

Blank vertical duplex 1870 Fred Steenbruggen 64/14

Inland Branch Cancellations from 1856 Experimentals and Vertical ovals 1981 LPHG Publications 7

Inland Branch the Upright Ovals Keith Martin Jones 3/5-6

Inland Section. The system at Mount Pleasant in 1934 72/14-19 73/1-3

Returned Letter Branch Obliterator 1898 63/17

## INLAND OFFICE CANCELLATIONS

Cancellation of Postal Markings with a I.O. Diamond 53/11

Double 81 diamond Mike Goodman /Tony Potter 100/21-22 112/7 145/11-12 164/19

Inland Office Cancellations 1844-1868 Brian Smith 1992 LPHG Publications 12

London Diamond number 22 15/17 16/18

London Diamonds comments K.J.A. Smith 4/2

Obliterators Used to Cancel Other Marks Robert Johnson 6/18 38/20 39/8 61/11

Returned Letter Branch RLB in diamond 1865 58/14

Roller Cancel 79 in a diamond 38/10 40/16

Ship Letter Office, Number 22 Diamond 1850 72/17

Unnumbered Diamond Peter Day James Grimwood-Taylor 48/6 53/4

## JAY LONDON CATALOGUE REVISIONS

1794 Reforms of the London Penny Post Jay 159/2-5

Charles Povey's Half-Penny Carriage 1709-1710 161/14

Country Sorting Offices 96/2-3

Country Sorting Offices 1830's 6/9-11

Country Sorting Offices Sep 1991 update 96/2-3

Country Sorting Offices Oct 2002 update 159/17-22

Cross and Bye Posts 161/27-29

Dockwra 1680-1682 154/11-12

Dockwra British County Catalogue London revisions 154/11-12

Foreign Branch Free Stamps 96/4

Foreign Office 158/15-28

Franking Barrie Jay & John Colton 154/2-10

General Post 1661 to 1858 157/2-21

General Post Branch Offices L 44 to L 57b 157/10-11

General Post Branch Offices, Paid Stamps L 130 to L 144 157/20-21

General Post Date Stamps: L 1 to L 23b 157/3-7 157/3-7

General Post Paid Stamps: L 90 to L113 157/16-19

General Post Receiving Houses 1661 to 1792 Sep 1991 update 96/5-10

General Post Receiving Houses 1782-1789 96/11-12

General Post Receiving Houses: L 60 to L 86e 157/12-15

Government Post 1682-1794 154/13-21

Instructional & Charge marks Penny & Twopenny Posts 161/15-26

Late Fee Stamps : L 36 to L 41 157/9

London Cross and Bye Posts 161/27-29

London General Post Instructional & Other Stamps (L. 150 - L. 309a) Barrie Jay 147/1

London General Post Receiving Houses 1782-1789 96/11-12

London Penny Post Receivers 154/21-24

London Ship Letters 161/30-40

London Twopenny Post 1801 – 1839 159/9-22

Map of Country Sorting Offices 159/18 & 19

Map of Twopenny Post Offices 159/9

More To Pay 1833 129/17-19

Penny Post Charge marks 161/15-26

Penny Post Receivers 154/21-24

Receivers in London and Westminster to 1789 96/13-14

Reorganized London Penny Post 1794 – 1801 159/6-8

Ship Letters 161/30-40

Sunday Date Stamps: L 25 to L 34a 157/8-9

Sunday Paid Stamps: L 120 to L 123 157/19

Town and Country areas of the Twopenny Post Offices 1837 159/9

Twopenny Post 1801 – 1839 159/9-22

Twopenny Posts Charge marks 161/15-26

Unclassified and Controversial Marks of London 161/41-43

#### LATE FEE & TOO LATE

Are These Late Letters? 1842 to 1858 Government mail Martin Wilcocks 127/12-16

Bishop Mark Too Late 49/14 51/12 Alf Kirk "Far Too Late" James G.-Taylor 51/14

Branch Office Late Fees 1842 times rates paid/unpaid Vivian Sussex 42/18

Cancels Duty Book from the early 20thC. 62/2-28

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

East District Boxed LI Michael Goodman 90/12

Grace Dove collection Early letters and datestamps 101/5-19

Grace Dove collection Instructional marks Penny & Twopenny post 101/68-83

Hooded Late Fee #8 new report 1911 Robert Johnson 161/7

Late Fee 1d on foreign mail, postage paid in cash 136/11-12

Late Fee and Too Late of London a draft 134/1-41

Late Fee Letters 1865 26/2

Late Fee or not? Michael Champness 1/7 2/6

Late Fee Stamps 128/10-12

Late Fee Stamps: L 36 to L 41 Jay County Catalogue revisions 157/9

Late Letter Fees 1870 89/16

London Bridge Station Late Fee duplex 71/20

Notice to the Public 23 December 1843 129/26

Paddington Station 6d Late Fee 1855 049 cancel Keith Romig 137/34-35

Public Awareness of Postal Rates 1905/6 88/4

Railway Station Late Fee Postmarks Keith Romig 71/20

SERPO late fee duplex Keith Romig 137/36

The Unframed 'L 1 of London Covers and Proof Book page illustrated 71/17-20

Too Late For the ½d. Rate Keith Parker 56/8

Too Late handstamp with Crown Ted Willcock 52/19

Too Late ZZ Codes G.H.Herrige 51/8

Undated Too Late stamps Michael English 10/12-13

Unusual Late Fee label 76/16

Unusual Sticker, Late Fee (private!) 76/16

## **LOCALITIES**

Acton Skeleton 1840 35/4

Banstead and Sutton numerals 759 and 759B Andrew Ford 158/8

Barnet Suburban ride map 1838 53/18

Battersea cds with cuts cancellation English 8/2 28/18-20

Beddington to Croydon Bye letters 146/4-7

Beddington, Extension of the Twopenny Post to 1802 108/5

Bermondsey and Rotherhithe a Postal History Alf Kirk 69/2-17

Bexley Tram Letter Box 1932 Peter Bathe 109/15 112/17-19

Blackheath Did it handle Greenwich mail? Martin Willcocks 54/2-3

Blackwall Ry. Mail Guard handstamp 100/5

Bow naval cover- background detail 1856 153/13 155/20

Brockley #23 Dulwich Type Handstamp Alf Kirk 37/12 75/4

Bromley Kent Franking and the Twopenny Post Michael English 9/7-8

Bromley Suburban ride map 1838 53/22

Burlington House Linnean Society Post Office 88/20

Camberwell a Postal History Alf Kirk 63/2-9

Carshalton Receiver's Stamps Don Franks 132/5-7

Carshalton post office boundaries 169/9-11

Carshalton, Extension of the Twopenny Post to 1802 108/5

Catford 71 Bookpost Precancel bogus ? 110/12 112/16-17

Charing Cross A 1848 17/4

Charing Cross A, mail despatched before 8AM 1846 Champness 17/4

Chelsea Hospital Franking Privilege & Postal Charges 40/4-6 97/13-16 108/7-9

Croydon Common 3d post paid 1835 Arthur Moyles 153/7

Croydon Cross Post Peter Bathe Arthur Moyles Peter Forrestier Smith 132/11-13

Croydon Penny post to Post Town 1712/13 116/2-3

Croydon Registered cover 1938 Arthur Moyles 158/8

Croydon Suburban ride map 1838 53/15

Croydon to Beddington Bye letters 146/4-7

Croydon Transferred rail mail Mike Goodman 132/19

Croydon, Extension of the Twopenny Post to 1802 108/5

Croydon, mis-sent to 1802 136/2-3

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

Deptford & Shooters Hill Cross Posts Peter Bathe 155/14-15

Deptford Cross Post Peter Bathe 86/14-16

Deptford London Circular Date Stamps request Martin Willcocks 80/16

Deptford Twopenny post receiving houses Map Peter Bathe 51/15-18

Dulwich a Postal History Kirk 74.75/8-15

Dulwich Columbia 1921 Hine 72/13

Dulwich Penny Post. Hitherto Unrecorded mark 1795 82/8

Dulwich type cancel, handstamp codes 37/12 75/4

Dulwich Unpaid Penny Post. Hitherto Unrecorded 1795 W. Hess 82/8

Ealing new cds of 1856 22/7

Edgware Suburban ride map 1838 53/17

Eltham the unique Receiving House stamp 1775 149/8

Enfield Suburban ride map 1838 53/19

Enfield Town, Recollections of the Postmistress 70/19

Finchley A Postal History from 1800 Jean Farrugia 64/5-8

Greenwich Did Blackheath handle Greenwich mail? Martin Willcocks 54/2-3

Greenwich Hospital Franking Privilege 40/4 97/13-16

Greenwich is horizontal Oval 49: or Sidmouth St.? Keith Romig 88/13

Greenwich mis-sort bye letter Peter Bathe 113/3-5 114/15-17

Greenwich Receivers salary increase 1805 133/2-4

Greenwich S.O./S.E. Squared Circle Handstamp 65/19-20

Hampton Suburban ride map 1838 53/23

Harrow 62 cancel and backstamps 136/10-11

Harrow Suburban ride map 1838 53/16

Haymarket Express Postal Service 1797 Official notice 34/21 35/14-19

Herne Hill numbers 52 " Dulwich " Type Sydenham 25 Bathe 37/12 75/4

Highbury Receiving House 149/2-4

Hope Town WR Receiving House 114/2-3

Hounslow Cross Post explanatory marks Peter Bathe 168/16-20

Hounslow Early Postal History 1566-1672 Greenwood 25/2

Hounslow Suburban ride map 1838 53/24

House of Commons: Post Paid Envelopes and Sorting Office 1984 73/3 76/32

Ilford Delivery 1802 75/3

Ireland straight line hand stamps 1784 and 1810 Colin Beddy 156/4-18

Islington not transferred to the Town Area in 1829 116/12

Kensington Gravel Pits 1858 C.U.D. Champness 17/7

Kent Numeral Cancels – draft of Kent in London Parmenter 152

Kew Gardens postmarks P.J.Elkins 47/5

Kew Prince George at 1829 to 1839 133/4-9

Kings Bench Prison Letters 73/9 Redirected Letter 59/16

Kingsland Receivers salary increase 1805 133/2-4

Lambeth New Receiving House handstamp 1794 Quinn 32/3

Lombard Street Massey trials at 1802 to 1904 Holliday 17/10

Maida Hill Duplex 1887 Norman Mousdon 65/4

Middlesex Numerals Cancels - draft of Middlesex in London Parmenter 147/13-41

Mitcham Provincial Style Date Stamp 1856/57 129/28

Mortlake a New Country Date Stamp John Sharp & Keith Romig 54/16

Mortlake. Two Country Sorting Office Date Stamps 1837/1838 88/8

NR not North Row, an Edinburgh Mark 48/8 49/20

Ormond street General Post Receiving House dated? 1708? 108/2-3 166/8

Ormond Street Receiving House 25/11 26/9 28/20 108/2 158/14 166/8

Paddington 59 cancel 1855 136/10-11

Paddington Station 6d Late Fee 1855 137/34-35

Peckham A Postal History Alf Kirk 66/12-16

Peckhan Skeleton 1911 87/7

Plumstead 128/13-18 Sussex Place 146/10-13

Plumstead Common, a Postal History Peter Bathe 61/4-6

Plumstead Road Sussex Place Peter Bathe 128/13-18 146/10-13

Postal Directory 1850 [treble issue] covers all aspects of the Post 83/85

Portsmouth Road Cross Post Twopenny Post Holliday 31/12

Putney – a collection Vic Walker 137/2-31

Queen Victoria Street Office is 47 Cannon Street 52/4 99/17-18

Roehampton – a collection Vic Walker 137/2-31

Romford Suburban ride map 1838 53/20

Rotherhithe and Bermondsey a Postal History Alf Kirk 69/2-17

Rotherhithe charge mark 1906 70/14

SE District Suburban and Provincial numerals Peter Bathe 48/10

Shooters Hill Twopenny Post map a correction Bathe 34/14-15

Shooters Hill & Deptford Cross Posts Peter Bathe 155/14-15

Shooters Hill a Postal History Bathe 49/11

Shooters Hill and other nearby offices a Postal History Peter Bathe 49/11-12

Shooters Hill and the Dover Mail Bathe 27/2

Shooters Hill London Circular Date Stamps an appeal Martin Willcocks 80/16

Sidmouth St. is horizontal Oval 49: or Greenwich? Keith Romig 88/13

Sloane Street Twopenny Post Receiver, critics of his behaviour 145/7-10

Sloane Street Twopenny Post Receiver, his behaviour 145/7-10

Smithfield West Receiver 1794 Gavin Littaur 155/6-7

South Audley St SO, new receiving house stamp 1839 G.M.Burtt 108/13

Southwark Postmarks from a Prison 20/2 53/6

Southwark three covers 127/26-27

Southwark postmarks Roy Lambert 127/26-27

Southwark a New Receiving House 1814 Alf Kirk 88/9

Southwark Prison Postmarks M.H.Bristow & Alf Kirk 20/2 53/6

Southwark Prison Letter Redirected Letter Michael Bavin Martin Willcocks 59/16 73/9

Southwark Receiving Houses Alf Kirk 52/2

Southwark, a Postal History Alf Kirk 57/1-20 108/16 111/16-19

Soutwark Original Dockwra. "B" for Borough???. Alf Kirk 76/19

St Martins Lane Receiving House 97/11-12

St Martins le Grand activity at 6PM, from "The Nights of London" by H.V.Morton 165/8-10

St Martins le Grand in 1840 47/7 49/2 (a correction by Martin Willcocks)

St Martins le Grand opening 1829 160/12-14

Stepney naval cover- background detail 1856 153/13 155/20

Stoke Newington, low number oval 7 50/2

Strand, Receiving Houses 1840-1850 Champness 31/6-10

Surrey Numeral Cancels – draft of Surrey Parmenter 150/1-12

Sussex Place and Plumstead Road Peter Bathe 128/13-18 146/10-13

Sutton and Banstead numerals 759 and 759B Andrew Ford 158/8

Sydenham number 25 " Dulwich " Type numbers 52 and 25 Bathe 37/12 75/4

Sydenham Receivers salary increase 1805 133/2-4

Three days from Tottenham to Glasgow Tottenham CSO date error 113/13-14 114/9-10

Tottenham Receiver complaining of poor pay 1804 145/4-5

Upper Mitcham undated circular stamp recorded 1858 Arthur Moyles 169/20

Waddon, Extension of the Twopenny Post to 1802 108/5

Wallington Charge marks Andrew Ford 155/16-19

Wallington, Extension of the Twopenny Post to 1802 108/5

Waltham Cross 5d Charge Mark 1836 to 1839 Barrie Jay 80/20

Waltham Cross Penny Post 129/23-25

Walthamstow a collection 167/3-25

Walworth Penny Post - The Large Figure 2 1795 Grace Dove 88/14

Walworth, a Postal History Alf Kirk 55/2-6

Waterloo Road Map of Receiver 1817 74.5/2

Whitecross Receiving House Alf Kirk Keith Romig 57/1-20 108/16 111/16-19

Wimbledon new 3d paid stamp 1836 116/14

Woolwich charge marks Peter Bathe 160/15-18 repeated in 166/12-15

Woolwich Common 1856 – 1969 Peter Bathe 153/9-12 165/10-11

Woolwich Suburban ride map 1838 53/21

Woolwich, a Postal History Peter Bathe 52/7-12

WR = Wandsworth Road, a possible explanation 114/2-3 116/9-10

## LONDON DISTRICT POST / SUBURBAN

4d Post period - Prepaid Local London Mail Encouraged 127/23

Acton Skeleton 1840 35/4

Barnet Suburban ride map 1838 53/18

Bermondsey and Rotherhithe a Postal History Kirk 69/2-17

Blackwall Ry. Mail Guard handstamp 100/5

Branch Office of Town Districts cancels 1856 onwards LPHG Publication 4

Branch Office Straight Line Handstamps 1857 64/11 65/2

Bromley Suburban ride map 1838 53/22

Camberwell a Postal History Kirk 63/2-9

Carshalton post office boundaries 169/9-11

Cavendish Low number oval auction Nov 2007 169/6-7

Charing Cross A, mail despatched before 8AM 1846 Champness 17/4

Country Sorting Offices a list by Jay 1972 6/7 21/4

Country Sorting Offices Jay County Catalogue revisions 159/17-22

Country Sorting Offices Update Jay London Catalogue 96/2-3

Cross and Bye Posts 6/11 30/13 41/2 42/9

Croydon Cross Post 132/11-13

Croydon Registered cover 1938 158/8

Croydon Suburban ride map 1838 53/15

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

Deptford & Shooters Hill Cross Posts Bathe 155/14-15

Deptford Cross Post by Peter Bathe 86/14-16

Deptford London Circular Date Stamps request Martin Willcocks 80/16

Designation numbers on registration labels Ray Woodward-Clarke 131/10-11 170/2-25

Disappearing London Subdistricts Colin Peachy 112/14

District Head Office cancels 1856 onwards LPHG Publications 4

District Improvements 1859/1865 16/9 17/6 26/2

District initials/numbers Introduction in 1917 PO Notice John Scott 158/4 161/5-6

District Post Duplex cancels 1840-1856 LPHG Publications 2

District Post Horizontal Oval cancels 1840-1856 LPHG Publications 2

Divide London into Ten Districts 2/10 4/13-17

Dulwich a Postal History Kirk 74.75/8-15

Dulwich Penny Post. Hitherto Unrecorded mark 1795 82/8

Dulwich, Columbia Machine, used in Hine 72/13

Ealing new cds of 1856 22/7

Eastern district Single obliterators with RL cds 136/13-15 146 /14-15

Edgware Suburban ride map 1838 53/17

Enfield Suburban ride map 1838 53/19

Erasure Marks of the London District Post 1857 James Grimwood-Taylor 54/3

Finchley A Postal History from 1800 Farrugia 64/5-8

Greenwich did Blackheath handle Greenwich mail? 54/2

Greenwich is horizontal Oval 49: or Sidmouth St.? Keith Romig 88/13

Greenwich mis-sort by eletter 1834 113/3-5 114/15-17

Hampton Suburban ride map 1838 53/23

Harrow 62 cancel and backstamps 136/10-11

Harrow Suburban ride map 1838 53/16

Head Office cancellations, first supplement to London's Postal History 50/19-23

Hope Town WR Receiving House 114/2-3

Horizontal Oval 49: is it Sidmouth St. or Greenwich? Keith Romig 88/13

Hounslow Cross Post explanatory marks 168/16-20

Hounslow Early Postal History Greenwood 25/2

Hounslow Suburban ride map 1838 53/24

Improved Organisation 1854 1/10

Individual Suburban Rides Barrie Jay 53/15-24

Introduction of the London numerals and numbers in cross Howard Hughes 146/18-19

Kensington Twopenny Post & General Post 16/4

Kent in London draft catalogue of Barred Numeral Cancels –152

Kew Gardens Elkins 47/5

Linnean Society Post Office 88/20

List London District Post Delivery in 1852 46/19

List of Places Within The Limits of The London District Post Delivery 82/16-18

London Date Stamp Codes 25-26

London District Map 1912 Werner Bauschke 81/18

London District Post & General Post in 1849 excerpt Brian Smith 133/10-13

London District Post Cancels 1844-1856 Dubus illustrations 3/8-14

London District Post Delivery in 1852 46/19

London Money Order Offices 1846 Champness 34/2

London Offices that Used Barred Numeral Cancels – draft of Kent in London Parmenter 152

London Offices that Used Barred Numeral Cancels – draft of Surrey Parmenter 150/1-12

London Offices that Used Barred Numerals-draft of Middlesex in London Parmenter 147/13-41

London Postal Districts 1863 24/1&13

Maida Hill Duplex 1887 65/4

Mail Guard Handstamp 50/5 61/13 97/18 100/5

Merging the General and Twopenny Post 61/29 64/9

Middlesex in London draft catalogue of Barred Numeral Cancels 147&8/13-41

More To Pay unrecorded 1833 129/17-19

Mortlake. Two Country Sorting Office Stamps 1837/1838 88/8

Multiple Office Initial Stamps on a Cover 87/4

NE district missort stamp P.Steenbruggen 97/19

New Post Codes 1917 30/8-9

NR not North Row, it is an Edinburgh Mark 48/8 49/20

Number of letters 1858 12/15

Office Initial Stamps of the London District Post 16/10 17/12 33/21 46/13 50/12 55/14 132/15-18 136/9 137/35 158/4

Ormond Street Receiving House 25/11 26/9 28/20 158/14

Paddington 59 cancel 1855 136/10-11

Peckham A Postal History Kirk 66/12-16

Plumstead 128/13-18 Sussex Place 146/10-13

Plumstead Common, a Postal History Bathe 61/4

Post Office Accounts 1846 and their relation to Letters Johnson 32/11

Postal address Labels and envelopes John Forbes Nixon 16/7 50/17

Postal Directory 1850 [treble issue] covers all aspects of the Post 83/85

Postal District / EC Envelope 1860 Simon Burke 87/8

Postal District Envelope Mike Goodman 70/18

Proposed LDP Labels and envelopes 1856-1857 16/7 50/17 Champness

Provincial Type Date Stamps more records 65/9

Putney – Walker collection 137/2-31

Queen Victoria Street Office (#16) is actually 47 Cannon Street 52/4 99/17-18

Receivers in 1857 from the Post Office Directory 137/39-43

Receiving House Locations 1794 38/3

Receiving Houses 1845 list 18/3

RL ride or route letter? 149/15-16

Roehampton – Walker collection 137/2-31

Romford Suburban ride map 1838 53/20

Rotherhithe and Bermondsey a Postal History Kirk 69/2-17

Rotherhithe charge mark 1906 70/14

S = Chief Surveyors Office 153/16-17 correction 155/15

SE District Suburban and Provincial Cancels 48/10

Shooters Hill Twopenny Post 34/14

Shooters Hill & Deptford Cross Posts 155/14-15

Shooters Hill a Postal History 49/11-13

Shooters Hill and the Dover Mail 27/2

Shooters Hill London Circular Date Stamps an appeal Martin Willcocks 80/16

Sidmouth St. is horizontal Oval 49: or Greenwich? Keith Romig 88/13

South-East District Post Office Hansard debate House of Commons 1985 72/2-10

Southwark three covers 127/26-27

Southwark a New Receiving House 1814 Kirk 88/9

Southwark, a Postal History Kirk 57/1-20 108/16 111/16-19

Stepney naval cover- background detail 1856 153/13 155/20

Stoke Newington, low number oval 7 50/2

Strand, Receiving Houses 1840-1850 31/6

Suburban Service 1863 24/1&13

Success of the 1856 Districts 7/19

Surrey in London draft catalogue of Barred Numeral Cancels 150/1-12

Sydenham "Dulwich "Type Handstamp 37/12 75/4

Town District and Branch Office cancels 1856 onwards LPHG Publication 4

Town Receiving House Stamping 1/7 2/6

Town Service 1863 24/1&13

Twopenny Post Ninth Report of the Commissioners 1837 173/2-10

Twopenny Post to town and country rides 81/14-17

Undated Receiving House Namestamps 1856 – 1860 a classification 131/14-16

Upper Mitcham undated circular stamp recorded 1858 169/20

Wallington Charge marks 155/16-19 158/8

Waltham Cross 5d Charge Mark 80/20

Walworth, a Postal History Kirk 55/2

Woolwich Common 1856 – 1969 153/9-12 165/10-11

Woolwich Suburban ride map 1838 53/21

Woolwich, a Postal History Bathe 52/6

WR = Wandsworth Road, a possible explanation 114/2-3 116/9-10

### LONDON LOCAL POST

Charles Povey private footpost 1709 161/14

Dockwra British County Catalogue London revisions 154/11-12

Dockwra Government Temple Office 39/16

Dockwra Penny Post of 1680 2/3

Government Post Hess Collection 92/38-56

Government Post Jay County Catalogue London revisions 154/13-20

Her Majesty's Post 1591 21/13

Local Posts Dockwra Hess Collection 92/37

London Local Post 50/13

London Receivers 1660 onwards 9/4

Manuscript comments on Dockwra cover 53/9

Original Dockwra. "B" for ???. 76/19

Receivers Appointed May 2 1661 36/17

Type 2 Dockwras 128/19

### MACHINE CANCELS

Azemar / Hinrichsen machine introduction to UK 1868 164/10-15

Azemar Claws Worth / Azemar patent Peach 42/14-15

Azemar Drawing from Patent Jack Peach 73/19

Azemar Machine summary historical 65/12 66/20

Azemar Machine, a detailed listing by Holliday 71/13

Azemar? Postcard cancellation of 1871 –149/16-18

Bickerdike Machine Holliday 21/17-19

Bickerdike Variety 1903 Noel Dickinson 70/15

Bickerdike 'VR', on a card posted to Switzerland 1897 Jerry Miller 146/15-16

Boston and International Machines Date Extensions R.Webb 97/10-11

Cancels Duty Book from the early 20thC. 62/2-28

Classification System for Machine Marks by Holliday and Pask 40/7-11

Columbia Dulwich 1921 John Hine 72/13

Columbia Machine, Received From HM Ships 1915 to 1921 Roger Keneally 64/19

Columbia Machine, used in Dulwich Hine 72/13

Columbia machines EC district by Holliday and Pask 41/13-19

Columbia Slogan "Received From HM Ships No Charge to be Raised" R.A.Keneally 49/3

Creswell "Machine" was in fact a Pearson Hill 42/16 90/2-3

Creswell Patent 29/5

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

Devices for applying cancellations, summary of early experimentals Johnson 33/2-8

Dulwich, Columbia 1920 Hine 72/13

Early Squared Circles and Massey Trials by Barette 56/10-14

EC Columbia's Holliday and Pask 41/13-19

Ethridge Machine 1886 89/15 88/18

Experimental Cancellations 8/4 9/1

Experimental machines at Auction prices realised RL Mar 1973 14/13

First Hoster 1882 108/19-20

First Krag Machine 40/12

Hey Dolphin 1893 experimental use 99/9

Hey Dolphin: A Scarce Example 1920 Douglas Collard 76/20

Honan machine 1914 118 to 120/32 131/16

Honan machine 1914 Alistair Kennedy 118/32 Mike Goodman 131/16

Hooded cancels Simon Kelly 26/16 115/3-10

Hoster First 1882 illustrated 108/19-20

Hoster Charing Cross Abbott Lutz 54/5

Hoster date stamp ZZ and Z May 1885 Tim Schofield 117/13-14

Hoster Machine Abbot Lutz 23/7-10 26/7-8 46/7-9

Hoster Machine British Postmark Soc. 46/7-9

Hoster Machine Derek Holliday 23/7-10 26/7-8 46/7-9

Hoster Machine from Brit Postmark Soc 23/7-10 26/7-8 46/7-9

Hoster Machine Holliday 23/7-10 26/7-8

Hoster Machines rare Tony Potter

Hoster Machines NPB 88/18

Hoster Unrecorded Brian Cheason 16/11 17/10

Jerry Miller's Machine postmark collection 1857 -1901 163/2-20 (corrections 1-4)

Krag Single Impression Machines Holliday 32/4

Krag Machine First by Holliday and Pask 40/12-15

London Fancy Geometric Postmarks a summary for the RPS by Maurice Barette 112/8-12

London Machine Cancels by Abbot Lutz 44/9-20 45/3-8

Machine cancellations from 1886 Holliday 15/6-12

Massey handstamp Letters Patent Maurice Barette 66/2-9

Massey trials and other unusual handstamps Holliday 24/3-4

Metered Mail-Coin fed machines Abbot Lutz 54/14

NPB Hoster Machines 88/18

Pearson Hill an Update Graham Homer-Wooff 46/16-18

Pearson Hill Cancellations F.M.Johnson 72/11-12

Pearson Hill First Type 39/4

Pearson Hill Patent diagrams and a code update Homer Wooff 46/16-18

Pearson Hill Recap on Codes Graham Homer Wooff 51/3-7

Postcard cancellation of 1871 – Azemar? 149/16-18

REX Experimental stamp applying machine 1910 14/12

Rideout New Find - H. S. or S. H. John Hine 90/6-7

Rubbing to Cancel, Whitehead Patent Application USA 1897 73/8

Second Trial of the Rideout Machines Oct 1866 #1 Jerry Miller 129/32

Single Impression Krag Machines 32/4

Six Position Letter Sorting Machine Trials 1952 - 1956 at Mount Pleasant 129/38

Stamping Machines 1859 17/6

Standard Machine used in 1930's Holliday 31/11

The Introduction of Meter Franking into Great Britain 1922 Jack Peach 127/9-10

Universal Machine Die Lettering 82/19

Unusual Machine Cancels 46/11 Alf Kirk 48/11 Response B.P.Pask 51/9

#### MALTESE CROSS CANCELLATIONS

Dates of Numbers in Maltese Cross cancels 13/10 14/7

Early Maltese Cross London cancellation trials in black 1840 Champness 14/3

Maltese Cross cancels in the Inland Office 13/10

Unnumbered Maltese Cross cancels in London 33/9

#### **MAPS**

Barnet Suburban ride map 1838 53/18

Bromley Suburban ride map 1838 53/22

Country Sorting Offices 1830's 6/9-11 159/18 & 19

Cross and Bye Posts 6/11 30/13 41/2 42/9

Croydon Suburban ride map 1838 53/15

Deptford Twopenny post receiving houses Map Peter Bathe 51/15-18

Edgware Suburban ride map 1838 53/17

Enfield Suburban ride map 1838 53/19

Hampton Suburban ride map 1838 53/23

Harrow Suburban ride map 1838 53/16

Home District cancellations 1934-1939 Stitt Dibden 16/12 17/2 17/4

Hounslow Suburban ride map 1838 53/24

Individual Suburban Rides Barrie Jay 53/15-24

Islington not transferred to the Town Area in 1829 116/12

London District Map 1912 Werner Bauschke 81/18

London District Post Offices photographs James Norris 78/1-134

Map of Country Sorting Offices 159/18 & 19

Places served by Penny Post Office in 1697 14/2

Plumstead Peter Bathe 128/13-18 146/10-13

Romford Suburban ride map 1838 53/20

Southwark Prison Postmarks from M.H.Bristow & Alf Kirk 20/2 53/6

Southwark, a Postal History Alf Kirk 57/1-20 108/16 111/16-19

Suburban Rides 1838 53/15-24

The Maps of the Receiving Houses of the Threepenny Post, 1837 Barrie Jay 15-24

Town and Country areas of the Twopenny Post Offices 1837 159/9

Twopenny Post Offices Town and Country areas of the 1837 159/9

Walworth, a Postal History Alf Kirk 55/2-6 Woolwich Suburban ride map 1838 53/21 Woolwich, a Postal History Peter Bathe 52/7-12

#### **MARITIME**

Additional Ship markings S56 – S59 lost Proof Book page shown 162/2-5

Army Mail 1799 Ship letters half price 76/10

Boer War Mail stamps applied in London Richard Stroud 156/18-19 160/3-11

Bow naval cover- background detail 1856 Geoffrey Osborn 153/13 155/20

Cancellations early 1900's Ship Letter 76/9

Compulsory prepayment ship letters to New York 99/13

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

Dated London Ship Letter 1815 Peter Forrestier Smith 49/20

Exempt Ship Letter 1845 Charles Hahn 56/14 59/15

Exempt Ship Letter 1656 Michael Jackson 64/2

Free Frank on Bombay via Falmouth Packet 1839 James Grimwood Taylor 162/11 164/5

Free Handstamps of the London Ship Letter Office Barrie Jay 127/4-7

Grace Dove collection Instructional marks Penny & Twopenny post 101/68-83

Grace Dove collection Ship Letters 101/117-136

India Ship Letter /4/ London Dr Wolf Hess 112/15-6

India Ship Letters 169/8-15 (page 13 please print and invert it!) 171/2-22

Indian Soldiers Letter 1843 160/11

Inspectors crown Ship Letter 129/15

London double rim maritime datestamps Chris Pearce 61/12

London Paid Ship Letter 1820 49/10

London River Letters 1803 & 1812 117/3-6

Mail to the Cape of Good Hope 1815 – 1818 Michael Scott Archer 65/13 66/11

Mulready de Luxe with London Ship Letter Paid Stamp 64/10

Number 22 in a Diamond Ship Letter 1850 72/17 72/17

Packet Letter Rate from Valparaiso 1844 32/6

Packets to India 1828 117/10-11

Paid Ship Letter 1820 Martin Willcocks 49/10

Paid Ship Letter London S44 58/10-11

Penny concessionary rate of sailors letters 1805 113/5-7

Post Office Monopoly, General Post Office Notice 1799 76/23

Postal Directory 1850 [treble issue] covers all aspects of the Post 83/85

Posted on board ship abroad..... Robert Johnson 1910 - 1932 4/11

Queenstown Mail by Charles Dickens 53/3

Received from HM Ships no charge to be made 51/13

Receiving Houses receipt of Ship letters 1840 9/10-14

River Letters 1800 25/15-17

River Letters 1803 & 1812 117/3-6

Separating and reading mail from a wreck 162/15-16

Separating and reading mail from the wreck of the Great Liverpool 162/15-16

Ship Letter Cancellations Naval mail numerals in cds 76/9

Ship Letter Number 22 Office Diamond 72/17

Ship Letter Office: Traudl collection 139,144/102-121

Ship Letter S.35a three known 50/9

Ship Letters Jay Catalogue revisions 161/30-40

Temple Office penny post not paid Ship letter 50/13

Three line date ship letter 1816 146/3-4

Traudl collection Ship Letter Office: 139/102-121

Twopenny post ship letter Martin Wilcocks 47/2 48/7

Twopenny Post Ship Letter Carrier Peter F.S. 27/6 to12

Twopenny Post Ship Letters 20/10 39/3

Why a Foreign Section Halfpenny Charge on a 1932 post card? 166/19-20

#### **MILITARY**

Army Mail 1799 Ship letters half price 76/10

Boer War Stamps applied in London R. Stroud & R. Johnson 156/18-19 160/3-11

Cancels Duty Book from the early 20thC. 62/2-28

Columbia Machine, Received From HM Ships 1915 to 1921 Roger Keneally 64/19

Columbia Slogan "Received From HM Ships No Charge to be Raised" R.A.Keneally 49/3

Communication with the enemy Robert Johnson 15/2-3

Feed the Guns with War Bonds Slogan R.A.Keneally 46/5 49/18

Grace Dove collection Instructional marks General post 101/52-67

Indian Soldiers Letter 1843 160/11

Mail to the Cape of Good Hope 1815 – 1818 Michael Scott Archer 65/13 66/11

MB Mobile Box in WW1 146/16-17

Penny concessionary rate of sailors letters 1805 Alistair Kennedy 113/5-7

R(Overseas)War Office Mark Simon Kelly 42/17

Received From HM Ships Columbia Machine 1915 to 1921 Roger Keneally 64/19

Received From HM Ships No Charge to be Made Peter Collins 51/13

Received From HM Ships No Charge to be Raised" Columbia Slogan R.A.Keneally 49/3

Registered SCIT Mark 1941 Simon Kelly 42/17

Ship Letter Cancellations Naval mail numerals in cds 76/9

Telegraph codes WW1 Post Office at War 42/7

Traudl collection Military marks 139/53

Undelivered in time of War Robert Johnson 7/4-12 15/2 16/17,19-20 17/14

Why a Foreign Section Halfpenny Charge on a 1932 post card? 166/19-20

## **MISCELLANEOUS**

1787 Experimental Postmark.37/10

1794 Reforms 32/17

1976 Expresspost Nightrider 37/3

A much travelled card Maurice Barette 127/11-12

Additional Halfpenny Mail Tax 1813 – 1839 18/11 Hodgson and Sedgewick 28/5-7

Advertising Letter Sheet Romig 36/6

Advertising Letter Sheets Chandler 40/17-18

Allowance Docket for Undelivered Letters Keith Romig 39/19

Bag Room Stamp Posted out of course "BRM" 1963 137/38

Battersea Pneumatic Conveyance of Parcels Crabb 38/14-16

Berri Handstamp Patent 52/13-16

Bexley Tram Letter Box 1932 109/15 112/17-19

Bishop Mark Too Late 49/14 51/12 Alf Kirk "Far Too Late" 51/14 James G-Taylor 49/14 51/12 51/14

Boer War South Africa Mail: stamps applied in London 156/18-19 160/3-11

Burlington House Linnean Society Post Office 88/20

By Kings Messenger 1916-28 145/18-20 146/17-18

Cancels Duty Book from the early 20thC. 62/2-28

Cary High Roads from London reprint 1790 review by Martin Willcocks 97/12-13

Charges for conveying Parcels from Inns 1824 161/3

Charges on returned mail 113/9 114/19

Chelsea Hospital & Postal Charges 40/4-6 108/7-9

Classification of Undated Namestamps 1840-1860 Champness 8/10-16

Complaint against a Penny Post receiving house 1806 116/4

Cork Cancellations 70/13

Corsini Historic Letters to Gratious Street 1570-1601 90/14

Cost per mile with the Twopenny Post 145/2-5

Court Mail by Sir Peter Horsley and Jean Farrugia 60/1-19

Creswell Patent 29/5-6

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

Date stamps made of wood 1857 164/18

Dead Letter Office Dick Armstrong 24/7 1821 to 1838 117/7-9

Delayed mail handstamp? 29/18

Designation numbers on registration labels R.L.Woodward-Clarke 131/10-11 170/2-25

Detained for postage Martin Townsend 86/10-12

Detained for Postage 1788 58/9

Disappearing London Subdistricts Colin Peachy 112/14

District initials/numbers Introduction in 1917 John Scott 158/4 161/5-6

Duke of Wellington calling card An 1847 Post Card James Grimwood-Taylor 132/14

Early letters and datestamps Grace Dove collection 101/5-19

Espionage in Post Office June 1844 12/1-3 13/8 repeat 173/18-19

Examiners' and Inspectors' Marks request 1798 and 1833 127/7-8

Express Delivery 1924 regulations 56/16-19

First day Official Post Card 14/16

Forwarding Agents in London 24/9-10

From a Chelsea Pensioner 1839 4/8

General History of the Post Office an excerpt 1837 75/28-41

Gill stamp vending machine 56/6

Great Exhibition 1851 general description 56/5-6

Great Exhibition 1851, The de la Rue Envelope 65/6

Gregorian and Julian Calendar J Beveridge 97/9-10

H. G. Fletcher Collection - Transfer to British Library 90/10

Half Penny Letter Post Company Ltd Romig 36/6 38/12

Half-Penny Letter Post Company John Chandler Romig 36/6 40/17-18

Hampshire Records Office: Missing Material 73/17

Hansard: Post Paid Envelopes and Sorting Office 1985 73/3 76/32

Haymarket Express Postal Service 1797 Official notice 34/21 35/14-19

Her Majesty's Mails, June 1882 an excerpt Terence Jeram 71/6-8

History of the Post Office to 1891 Tombs LPHG Publications 9

House of Commons current mail handling 73/3 76/32

House of Commons Franked Envelopes Withdrawal March 1984 Hansard 66/9

Ilford private postal delivery 1802 75/3

Increase in Correspondence 1864 25/18

Inland Section, The system at Mount Pleasant in 1934 72/14-19 73/1-3

International Exhibition 1862 23/5

International Money Orders 1909 Robert Johnson 162/13-14

International Postage Due 42/8-9

Ireland straight line hand stamps 1784 and 1810 Colin Beddy 156/4-18

Kings Bench Prison Letters R.M.Willcocks 73/9

Language of Stamps John Sharp 129/40 145/11

Letter Carrier debts 1803 131/18-20 136/3-6

Letter from a Chelsea Pensioner 4/8

Letters in London Postal Service Tombs 1891 67/7

Location of the Head Post Office 1526 to 1687 13/3 17/1

London Balloon Posts 1870-1967 7/2

London Bishop Marks 42/6

London Catalogue Barrie Jay 1<sup>st</sup> update 147&8/2-12

London E. - Unclaimed Stamp, Unclaimed for 2 years 1883-1885 129/35

London Inspectors Stars 34/17-21

London Missort Marks 1858 – 1955 19/5-11 English 20/7 64/13

London Money Order Offices 1846 34/2

London Packet Letter Rate from Valparaiso 1844 32/6

London Postal Service Tombs 1891 67/1-37

London Scroll: A Redirection Cancellation 1882 55/11

London Streets Places & Numbers Since 1855 Alan Ruston 128/2-10

London to Guernsey in 1832 61/7

London's Post Before Penny Post [Reprint of P. O. Magazine 1895 87/16-20

Mail Cart Service in London Postal Service Tombs 1891 67/15

Map of Waterloo Road Receiver 1817 74.5/2

MB Mobile Box in WW1 146/16-17

Mileage Marks and the Rating of Letters Through London 100/7-16

Missent to London 1822 69/19

Missort Mail missing in the Post Michael Champness 114/4

Modern Miss-sort and M.LO stamps 81/7

Money Order Offices in London January 1849 108/15

Money pre-payment for Inland Letters 1850's 38/10

Multiple Office Initial Stamps on a Cover 1854 Michael Jackson 87/4

New Post Codes 1917 30/8

New Sorting Tables Designated By Letters 1798 129/10

New Street Letter Boxes 1855 contemporary report with illustrations 30/12

Newspaper cuttings 1842 to 1843 108/13-14 113/10

No holiday in the morning of Coronation Day PO notice 1838 113/7

Nomenclature of Streets 1856 1/11 7/19

Notice to the Public 23 December 1843 129/26

Oblique bar in shillings and pence origin John Grimmer 12/14 173/20

Official History of the Post Office to be published?? In 2016?? UCL studentship 76/24

Official mail after Franking ceased in 1840 – codeless crowns James Grimwood Taylor 149/12-15

Old Home of the Post Office Magazine Article 1890-1891 90/16-20 97/2-8

Out of Date Redirection 1939 87/10

Paid Stamp Undated 1840 70/16

Parcel Post Cancellation 1891 71/4

Parliament and the Post today John Holman 169/2-5

Parliament mail express service 1961 161/8

Parliamentary mail, Freeling Free printed envelope 1820's & 1830's 108/9-10

Parliamentary Reports 1986 80/19

Perils of Airmail 1939 109/16-18

Petition about distress of the Letter Carriers 1837 14/4

Postal Directory 1850 LPHG Publications 10

Post Horses in Her Majesty's Post 1591 Greenwood 21/13

Post Office Accelerators (a horse drawn vehicle) 1829 20/9

Post Office Accounts 1846 and their relation to Letters Johnson 32/11

Post Office at War, Telegraph codes WW1 42/7

Post Office Establishment and salaries 1834 155/9-13

Post Office History to 1891 Tombs LPHG Publications 9

Post Office in 1851 reprinted article J.C.Platt 43/17 44/3 45/15

Post Office in 1853 reprinted article Leslie Bond 65/3-10

Post Office losses in the Great Fire 17/1 repeat 173/13-15

Post Office Monopoly, General Post Office Notice 1799 76/23

Post Office Railway 91/2-15

Post Office Regulations (1848) from Letts diary 73/13-16

Post Office Research Studentship to publish a History of the Post Office in 2016?? 76/24

Post Office rules for re-direction 1914 and later Michael Goodman 149/18

Post Office Two descriptions made in 1835 & 1845 Ken Sargeant 56/24

Post Office Uniforms An article with illustrations Crabb 31/5 89/5-11

Postage Due from abroad 1871 and 1882 71/5

Postage paid in cash 1903 133/15-16

Postal Directory 1850 [treble issue] covers all aspects of the Post 83/85

Postal Service of Today 1891 Tombs LPHG Publications 9

Postal Strike 1962 Service Suspended Robert Johnson 160/20

Postcards cannot be sent to Paris 1875 35/11

Posted on board ship abroad..1932 handstamp....4/11

Posted Out of Course 61/9 64/20 66/20

Postman attacked 1786 62/20

Postman's life, a history - a valuable resource in PO archives 47/13-20

Postmarks from a Southwark Prison M.H.Bristow & Alf Kirk 20/2 53/6

Postmistress of Enfield Town, Recollections 70/19

Prepayment by Stamps Official notice 38/10

Prepayment of Postage in 1854 26/4-6

Provincial Type Date Stamps used in London 65/8

Public Awareness of Postal Rates & Services 1905/6 88/4

Quartered Circle Bagging Stamps 1864-1900 88/2

Queenstown Mail by Charles Dickens 53/3

R.L.O. Docket 1886 51/2

Rates of Postage Treasury Warrant (9<sup>th</sup> January 1855) 73/11

Receiving House, other business in High Holborn 1838 12/12

Redirected Letter from Kings Bench Prison 1825 59/16

Reorganisation of the Post Office in 1875 Anon 111/2-15

Returned Letter Branch RLB in diamond 1865 58/14

Returned Letter Office Docket 1886 Martin Willcocks 51/2

Returned Letter Office, London E. 1873 128/20

Returned Letter Office, mail to St Jago de Cuba Tony Potter129/31-32

Returned Letter Stamps from the Proof Books Robert Johnson 32/18-26 35/11

Re-Use of Adhesive 1843 75/7

River Letter Postman Suspected of a Felony 1810 25/14

River Letters 1800 25/15

Rubbing to Cancel, Whitehead Patent Application USA 1897 Jack Peach 73/8

S = Chief Surveyors Office Parmenter 153/16-17 correction 155/15

S for Sunday 1838 10/3-4 61/17

Separating and reading mail from the wreck of the Great Liverpool 162/15-16

Sevenoaks Post by Archie Donald, a review 108/20-22

Six Operator Letter Sorting Machine Trials 1952 - 1956 at Mount Pleasant Brian Smith 129/38

Skeleton Postmarks of England and Wales by Colin Peachy a review 111/21

Social conditions of the workers 1857 11/16-20 14/17 15/18

South-East District Post Office Hansard debate House of Commons 1985 72/2-10

Special Delivery straight line handstamp 1924 161/13

St Martins le Grand activity at 6PM, from "The Nights of London" by H.V.Morton 165/8-10

St Martins le Grand in 1840 (with a correction by Martin Willcocks) 47/7 49/2

Stamped Mailsort Cancellations presorted discount mail 169/18

Stone Inland Posts [1392-1672]. Review 81/8&11

Sub Office Stamping stopped 1860 1/7 correction 2/6

Sunday Bank Circulars August, 1845 81/9

Sunday Express Delivery 1900 Alistair Kennedy 129/36

Sunday Letters in London. P.O. Notice 1837 82/10

Sunday Letters in London. P.O. Notice to the Treasury 1837 82/10-12

Telegraph codes WW1 42/7

Three days from Tottenham to Glasgow Tottenham CSO date error 113/13-14 114/9-10

Time in the Clear, Post Office Notice 4 Dec 1894 65/17

Unclaimed Stamp, Unclaimed for 2 years 1883-1885 Michael Goodman 129/35

Unclassified and Controversial Marks of London Jay Catalogue revisions 161/41-43

Undelivered Picture Postcards, 1905 what did the GPO do? 43/2

Underpaid "printed mail" postcard going abroad 1931 71/14

Underpaid Mail, Dutch Scheme of Payment by meter account holders 75/26 76/17

Unpaid UK mail in the 1850's 26/4-6

Unusual marks in the Proof Books Johnson 18/16

Usage of Red Official Paid Stamps in 1937 76/12

Valentines 1862 23/5

W in a circle Quinn Jay 14/8 15/4-5 32/10 33/15

Wages, a discussion 1855 2/12

Weighing Machine at the Post Office to weigh vehicles 1856 George Crabb 28/9

Window Letter Mark. A Previously Unrecorded example 1771 82/9

Woolwich charge marks 160/15-18

Woolwich Common 1856 – 1969 Peter Bathe 153/9-12 165/10-11

WR = Wandsworth Road, a possible explanation George Crabb 114/2-3 116/9-10

Wrapper Essays 1837 11/8

Wrapper Essays 1837 Champness 11/8-11

## **NEWSPAPER BRANCH**

Barred circles and Precancels 29/19

Cancels Duty Book from the early 20thC. 62/2-28

Catford 71 Bookpost Precancel bogus ? 110/12 112/16-17

Chief Office Newspaper Cancels D27 to D56 John Hine 50/5

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

EC and Newspaper Branch new cancellation records Russell Taylor 166/18-19

London Gazette cancel 1901 27/17 86/19 Elkin P.J. W.V.Evans 27/17 86/19

Newspaper Precancels 29/19

Newspaper and Book Post R.I.Johnson 33/10-13

Newspaper and Book Post Robert Johnson 33/10-13

Newspaper Branch Charge Mark 1897 Michael Goodman 109/12

Newspaper Branch Roller John Forbes Nixon 58/12

Newspaper Branch Single cancels Dr Champion 145/14

Newspaper cuttings 1842 to 1843 108/13-14 113/10 George Crabb

Newspapers and the Post Office 1635 – 1834 4/6

Newspapers for Russia 1864 Official notice 36/19

Newspapers Sent by Post 1790-1825 James Grimwood-Taylor 127/21-22

NPB Hoster Machines 3 illustrations Tony Potter 88/18

Overweight Newspaper to Russia 1902 Keith Romig 71/16

PHSoc Newspapers and the Post Office 1635 – 1834 by Jeremy Greenwood 4/6

Posted within 3 miles of GPO handstamp 1856 25/13

Precancellation Stamps Overseas, Daily Mail 75/5

Single cancels Dr.R.H.Champion 145/14

Wrapper from India, Found in Inland Section Without Contents 1948 73/5

#### **OBITUARIES**

Abbot Lutz 76/15

Arthur J. Brown 86/2

Barrie Jay 167/1

Bernard Gledhill 131/2

Bernard Smith 112/2

Derek Holliday 82/1

Frank Holland 53/1

Howard Robinson 33/1

Kenneth Sargeant 109/5

Martin Willcocks 132/2

Michael English 156/2

Michael Jackson 155/2

PJ Elkins 131/2

Tony Potter 156/2

Tony Thompson 162/2

Victor Swan 21/3

#### PARCEL POST CANCELLATIONS

Cancels Duty Book from the early 20thC. 62/2-28

Charges for conveying Parcels from Inns 1824 Andrew Ford 161/3

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

Double lined diamond hand stamps 1908/1912 Mike Goodman 117/15-16

First record of a parcel post cancel 1891 71/4

Hooded cancels Simon Kelly 26/16 115/3-10

London Overseas Parcels Mail Office 39/5&6

Parcel Post Cancellation 1891 Dr Champion 71/4

Parcel Post in London Postal Service Tombs 1891 67/23

Parcel Section Inland Section, The system at Mount Pleasant in 1934 72/14-19 73/1-3

Parcels for Neutral European Countries Robert Johnson 39/16

#### **PENNY POST**

1794 Reforms of the London Penny Post Jay County Catalogue revisions 159/2-5

2 made up of short lines in a circle," Controversial Penny Post Mark" 81/3

Bishop Mark Too Late 49/14 51/12 "Far Too Late" 51/14 John Brindley 49/14 51/12 51/14

Charles Povey's Half-Penny Carriage 1709-1710 161/14

Collector of the London Penny Post Ralph Blackhall, working conditions 1692-1704 14/1-2

Croydon Penny Post to a Post Town 1712/13 Arthur Moyles 116/2-3

Dockwra British Jay County Catalogue London revisions 1680-1682 154/11-12

Dockwra Government Temple Office 39/16

Dockwra's private post: Traudl collection 139/54

Dulwich Unpaid Penny Post. Hitherto Unrecorded 1795 W. Hess 82/8

Early letters and datestamps Grace Dove collection 101/5-19

Experimental Marks of the Penny Post from 1794 John Adams 6/2-3

Experimental Paid Stamps 1794 Alistair Kennedy 129/8

Eye witness account Penny Post 1680 22/3-7

Foreign Office Stamp "P.P." for transfer to the Penny Post 1794 & 1795 82/13

General and Local receiving Houses 1791 John Adams 13/18-19

Government Post Hess Collection 92/38-56

Government Post Jay County Catalogue London revisions 1682-1794 154/13-21

Governments private post: Traudl collection 139/55-71

Head Office and Post Houses locations 1526-1687 Jeremy Greenwood 173/11-15

Instructional & Charge marks Penny & Twopenny Posts Jay Catalogue revisions 161/15-26

Instructional marks Penny & Twopenny post Grace Dove collection 101/68-83

Local Posts Dockwra Hess Collection 92/37

London Bishop Marks Alf Kirk 42/6

London Penny Post Numbered Receivers' Handstamps Hugh Feldman 132/2-5

London Receivers 1660 onwards 9/4

Mails after the Great Plague 1665 Champness 12/13-14

Manuscript comments on Dockwra cover Tom Todd 53/9

New Sorting Tables Designated By Letters 1798 Alistair Kennedy 129/10

Penny Post - The Large Figure 2 Walworth 1795 88/14

Penny Post 1680 – 1801 30/19

Penny Post in 1681 from an Account of the Penny Post 129/2-6

Penny Post Office Returned Letter 1797 129/9

Penny Post Offices a survey 1792 34/3-6

Penny Post Receivers Jay British County Catalogue London revisions 154/21-24

Penny post Receivers who owe money 1687 10/1

Penny Post Reforms of 1794 Official notice 34/7-13

Penny Post's 1680 – 1801 30/19

Petitions from a Collector of the Penny Post Office 1692 to 1704 14/1-2

Places served by Penny Post Office in 1697 Map 14/2

Receiving House Holidays 1683 73/5

Receiving House stamp the unique Eltham office 1775 149/8

Receiving House Stamps 1794 – 1801 Barrie Jay 12/9-11

Reorganised Penny Post Hess Collection 92/57-66

Reorganized London Penny Post 1794 – 1801 Jay County Catalogue revisions 159/6-8

Reorganized Penny Post: Traudl collection 139/72-78

Returned Letter Penny Post Office notice 1797 Michael Goodman 129/9

Second Penny Paid & new receivers mark A major discovery 1785 86/3 87/4 James G-T 86/3-5

Smithfield West Receiver 1794 155/6-7

Soutwark Original Dockwra. "B" for Borough???. Alf Kirk 76/19

Temple Office penny post not paid Ship letter 50/13

Twopenny Post Ninth Report of the Commissioners 1837 173/2-10

Type 2 Dockwras 128/19

Uniform Postage Hess Collection 1840 on 92/35-36

Unpaid Mail in Uniform Penny Post in London 73/7

Waltham Cross Penny Post 129/23-25

Walworth Penny Post - The Large Figure 2 1795 Grace Dove 88/14

Window Letter Mark. A Previously Unrecorded example 1771 Alf Kirk 82/9

Woolwich penny paid L509 new date 23/3/1843 168/20

## POSTAL DIRECTORY / DUTY BOOK (Covers several categories)

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

London's Post Before Penny Post [Reprint of P. O. Magazine 1895 87/16-20

Post Office Regulations (1848) 73/13-16

Postal Directory 1850 [treble issue] 83/85 Not included in the scanned issues

Postal Official's Duty Book 1906 to 1917 mostly 1907 62/2-28

## **POSTMARKS MISCELLANEOUS (excluding cancellations)**

A instructional mark Barry Hampton 116/7-8 117/6-7

Additional Halfpenny Mail Tax 1813 – 1839 18/11 28/5

Apex down Triangular Marks proof impressions 1876 20/12

Bag Room Stamp Posted out of course "BRM" 1963 Andrew Ford 137/38

Battersea Pneumatic Conveyance of Parcels 3 illustrations Crabb 38/14-16

BB is Blind Bag? Auckland Romig Willcocks James G-T 43/12 44/6 46/3-4 48/2 48/12 53/10

Bookpost Precancel? Bogus Alf Kirk 110/12 112/16-17

Branch Office Straight Line Handstamps 1857 Keith Romig 64/11 65/2

Branch Offices Handstamps 1829-1857 John Sharp LPHG Publications 5

Branch Offices of the General Post 29/7 31/14 33/16

Bromley Kent Franking and the Twopenny Post 9/7

Bye Posts 1811 23/11

Charge for Redirection 1893 53/12

Charing Cross A, mail despatched before 8AM 1846 17/4

Classification of Undated Namestamps 1840-1860 Champness 8/10-16 and LPHG publication 1

Codes Date Stamp 1979 LPHG Publications 3

Country Letter Receivers Notice Twopenny post 1820 49/17

Country Sorting Offices Update Jay London Catalogue 1811-1846 96/2-3

Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

Date Code Letters of London Scrolls and Double Circles Maurice Barette 54/6-8

Date Stamp Codes 1979 LPHG Publications 3

Detained for postage 30/2

Double Rim Stamp of 1795 32/16

Early Squared Circles and Massey Trials by Maurice Barette 56/10-14

EC Blind Duty Stamps available in 1978 36/10

English Handstamps on Foreign Mail, 1667 – 1740 David Cornelius 66/17-19

Erasure Marks of the London District Post 1857 James Grimwood-Taylor 54/3

Erasure Marks of the Twopenny post 33/20&22

Examiners' and Inspectors' Marks Mike Bolt 127/7-8

Exempt Ship Letter 1845 56/14 59/15

Express Delivery 1924 PO Instructions 56/16-19

FTS postmark not Foreign Section ±1960 Alistair Kennedy 117/19

General Post Handstamps in the Proof Books 7/16

General Post Receiving House Namestamps 6/12 7/14

Guildhall Penny Postage Jubilee "Star" Cancellations 1890 Werner Bauschke 81/4-6

Handstamps of the Branch Offices 1829-1857 John Sharp LPHG Publications 5

Handstamps on mail in transit or coming to London 1800 to 1840 John Harrison 54/9-13&18-19

Handstruck Erasure Marks new information Bristow 33/20 38/9 59/17

Inspectors Mark L and the General Post 1840's O.F.Embery 40/2

Kew Gardens postmarks P.J.Elkins 47/5

L in a cds used for mail delayed through mis-sorting Alistair Kennedy 108/17 111/22 112/5

L in a circle Mail missing in the Post Michael Champness 114/4

Letter Receivers in 1822/3 16/1

London Date Stamp Codes 1979 LPHG Publications 3

London Fancy Geometric Postmarks a summary for the RPS by Maurice Barette 112/8-12

London Gazette cancel 1901 W.V.Evans 27/17 86/19

London Inspectors Stars McDermott 34/17-21

London Missort Marks 1858 – 1955 19/5 20/7 64/13

London Provincial Handstamps provincial letters in London 1800 to 1840 54/9-13&18

London's Twopenny Post Relative Rarity 4/3

Made up of short lines in a circle 1786 Penny Post Mark? Alf Kirk 81/3 2

Mail Guard Handstamps M Bristow Michael Champness 35/2-4 50/5 61/13 97/18 100/5

Massey handstamp Letters Patent Maurice Barette 66/2-9

Metal Stamps in the Twopenny Post 45/9

Mileage Marks and the Rating of Letters Through London John Harrison 100/7-16

Missent to London 1822 69/19

Modern Miss-sort and M.LO stamps 81/7

More To Pay 1869 a rare mark Martin Willcocks 71/11

Mortlake. Two Country Sorting Office Stamps 88/8

Multiple Office Initial Stamps on a Cover 1854 87/4

New Receiving House handstamp Lambeth 1794 32/3

NR not North Row, an Edinburgh Mark 48/8 49/20

Obliterators Used to Cancel Other Marks 6/18 38/20 39/8

Office Initial Stamps of the London District Post 16/10 17/12 33/21 46/13 50/12 55/14 132/15-18 136/9 137/35 158/4

Paid handstamps of the Twopenny Post John Harrison 55/18

Paid Stamps of the General Post a summary 18/supplement 1-6

Partington Receiver his address 1752 to 1783 20/7

Provincial Type Date Stamps more records 65/9

Quartered Circle Bagging Stamps 1864-1900 Michael Scott Archer 88/2-4

Quartered Circle Stamps of the Foreign Branch 1864 – 1900, Michael Scott-Archer 98/1-23

R1 code for SE Express Sorting Office 1959 Sargeant 31/4

Redirected Mail Trapnell 36/3 55/11

Registered SCIT Mark 1941 42/17

Returned Letter Duty Handstamp EC John Hine 55/16

Returned Letter Office Frank Lane Noel Dickinson128/20 136/13-15 146/14-15

RL = route letter, mail given to Mail Cart drivers 149/15-16

RL handstamp 1825 & 1859 81/12-13

S for Sunday? 1838 Grace Dove 10/3 61/17

Southwark, a Postal History Alf Kirk 57/1-20 108/16 111/16-19

Special Delivery straight line handstamp 1924 161/13

Sunday Bank Circulars August, 1845 Colonel Crouch 81/9-10

The 1787 Experimental Postmark. Kirk and Willcocks 37/10

Time in the Clear Post Office Notice 4 Dec 1894 Reg Sanders 65/17

Tombstone "Paid Stamps of London Neil Blair 55/7-8

Too Late Bishop Mark, two marks showing delay 49/14

Undated Namestamps 1840-1860 a classification Champness 8/10-16 and LPHG publication 1

Undated Too Late stamps 19<sup>th</sup> C. 10/12

Undelivered in time of War, London Marks on Mail R.Johnson 7/4-12 15/2 16/17 17/14

Upper Mitcham undated circular stamp recorded 1858 Arthur Moyles169/20

Usage of Red Official Paid Stamps in 1937 W.A.Wiseman 76/12-15

Various Postmarks Duty Book from the early 20thC. 62/2-28

Vauxhall new missort mark 81/7

W in a circle For "Wrongly Posted" Holliday 14/8 15/4 32/10 33/15

W in a circle Window letter 14/8 15/4 32/10 33/15

Waltham Cross 5d Charge Mark 1836 to 1839 Barrie Jay 80/20

#### **RAILWAY**

Bexley Tram Letter Box 1932 Peter Bathe 109/15 112/17-19

Blackwall Ry. Mail Guard handstamp 100/5

Cancels Duty Book from the early 20thC. 62/2-28

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

London to Dover cancel 1860 G.F.Oxley 115/18

Mail Guard Handstamp M Bristow Michael Champness 35/2-4 50/5 61/13 97/18 100/5

Mail Guard stamps are letter box stamps at certain Railway Stations 161/11-13

Non philatelic rail mail 132/20

Paddington Station 6d Late Fee 1855 049 cancel Keith Romig 137/34-35

Post Office Railway Articles from the Post Office and Stamp Lover 91/2-15

Post Office Railway advertising card 109/14

Railway Station Late Fee Postmarks Keith Romig 71/20

Returned Registered Letter – "not to be dropped from a train" 1900 132/20 133/16-17 136/19-20

SERPO late fee duplex Keith Romig 137/36

Transferred rail mail Mike Goodman 132/19

Travelling Post Office in London Postal Service Tombs 1891 67/21

#### **RECEIVING HOUSES**

1660 onwards Receivers Jeremy Greenwood 9/4-5

1660-1838 General Post Receivers by Hugh V. Feldman 107/1-27

1661 Receivers Appointed May 2 36/17

1661 to 1792 General Post Receiving Houses Jay update London Catalogue 96/5-10

1742 – 1792 General Post receivers Jay 26/11-15

1782-1789 General Post Receiving Houses 96/11-12

1785 Second Penny Paid & new receivers mark A major discovery 86/3-5 87/4 James G-T

1789 Receivers in London and Westminster to 96/13-14

1791 list General and Local receiving Houses John Adams 13/18-19

1792 list General Post Receivers Alf Kirk 82/5-7

1794 – 1801 Receiving House Stamps Jay 12/9-11

1840 Twopenny Post and General Receiving Houses 9/10 19/2

1840 List of Receiving Houses within three miles of the General Post Office 9/10-15

1845 list Receiving Houses 18/3

1857 Receivers from the Post Office Directory 137/39-43

Bye Posts 1811 23/11

Carshalton Receiver's Stamps Don Franks 132/5-7

Cavendish auction realisations September 2006 Receiving Houses 164/16-18

Country Letter Receivers PO Notice 49/17

Deptford Twopenny post receiving houses Map Peter Bathe 51/15-18

Eltham the unique Receiving House stamp 1775 149/8

Feldman Letter Receivers 146/2 149/5-6 158/11-12 161/6

Grace Dove collection Receiving Houses 101/20-36

Greenwich Receivers salary increase 1805 133/2-4

Hess Collection General Post Receiving Houses 92/20-23

Highbury Receiving House 149/2-4

Hope Town WR Receiving House 114/2-3

Kingsland Receivers salary increase 1805 133/2-4

L 60 to L 86e Jay revisions General Post Receiving Houses: 157/12-15

Lambeth 1794 New Receiving House handstamp Quinn 32/3

Letter Receivers within 12 miles of London 1822/3 & 1832 Greenwood 16/1

Locations 1794 Receiving House 38/3-6

Manuscript Receivers Marks a list Alf Kirk 69/20 75/18-25 99/2-4

Map of Waterloo Road Receiver 1817 74/5-2

Money Order Offices in London January 1849 108/15

Namestamps 1650's-1840 General Post Receiving House 6/12-16 7/14 Michael English

Ormond street? General Post Receiving House dated 1708 in 108/2-3 166/8

Ormond Street Receiving House 25/11 26/9 28/20 108/2-3 158/14 166/8 Phillipa McIntosh

Other business 1838 12/12

Partington Receiver his address 1752 to 1783 Kirk 20/7

Penny Post Receivers Jay British County Catalogue London revisions 154/21-24

Penny post Receivers who owe money 1687 Jeremy Greenwood 10/1

Proof Books General Post Handstamps in the Michael English 7/16

Shooters Hill and the Dover Mail Bathe 27/2

Sloane Street Twopenny Post Receiver, critics of his behaviour 145/7-10

Smithfield West Receiver 1794 Gavin Littaur 155/6-7

South Audley St SO, new receiving house stamp 1839 G.M.Burtt 108/13

Southwark a New Receiving House 1814 Alf Kirk 88/9

Southwark Receiving Houses Alf Kirk 52/2

St Martins Lane Receiving House Mike Burtt 97/11-12

Strand, Receiving Houses 1840-1850 Champness 31/6-10

Sydenham Receivers salary increase 1805 133/2-4

Threepenny Post, 1837 + The Maps Receiving Houses of Barrie Jay 53/2,& 15-24

Tottenham Receiver complaining of poor pay 1804 145/4-5

Town Receiving house stamping Michael Champness 2/6

Traudl collection General Post Receivers: 139/28-33

Twopenny Post Country Receiving Houses revised list Adams 31/17 33/14

Undated Receiving House Namestamps 1856 – 1860 a classification 131/14-16

Whitecross Receiving House Keith Romig Alf Kirk 57/1-20 108/16 111/16-19

WR = Wandsworth Road, a possible explanation 114/2-3 116/9-10

## **REGISTERED**

Cancels Duty Book from the early 20thC. 62/2-28

Croydon Registered cover 1938 Arthur Moyles 158/8

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

Designation numbers on registration labels Ray Woodward-Clarke 131/10-11 170/2-25

Incoming Registered mail 1805 131 5-9

Missing registration label 1937 Paul Davey 145/15-16

Newspaper cuttings 1842 to 1843 George Crabb 108/13-14 113/10

Overseas Registered Mail to France 1822 Martin Willcocks 131/3-5

Postage paid in cash 1903 Simon Kelly 133/15-16

Posted Out Of Course Alf Kirk Robert Johnson John Forbes Nixon 61/9 64/20 66/20 117/17-18

Registered Letters 21/12 22/16 23/5

Request for postage due 1941 Mike Goodman 145/17-18

Returned Registered Letter "not to be dropped from a train" 1900 132/20 133/16-17 136/19-20

#### REPORTS OF THE POSTMASTER GENERAL

## First Report of the Postmaster General 1854 1/10-12 7/19

Improved Organisation 1/10

Nomenclature of Streets 1/11 7/19

# Second Report of the Postmaster General 1855 2/10-14 4/13-17

Divide London into Ten Districts 2/10 4/13-17

Merge General and District Letter Carriers 2/10

Wages, a discussion 2/12

## Third Report of the Postmaster General 1856 7/19-20 9/15

Success of Districts 7/19

## Fourth Report of the Postmaster General 1857 10/17-18 11/16-20

Chief Office 10/17

London Delivery 10/17

Social conditions of the workers 11/16-20

## Fifth Report of the Postmaster General 1858 12/15-16 14/17-19 15/18-19

Number of letters 12/15-16

## Sixth Report of the Postmaster General 1859 16/9 17/6

Districts 17/6

Stamping Machines 17/6

Amount of Correspondence 17/6

St Martins le Grand 16/9

Districts 16/9

## Seventh Report of the Postmaster General 1860 21/11-12

Improvements 21/11

Registered Mail 21/12

## Eighth Report of the Postmaster General 1861 22/16

Prepaid Letters 22/16

Registered 22/16

## Ninth Report of the Postmaster General 1862 23/5

International Exhibition 23/5

Registered Letters 23/5

Valentines 23/5

## Tenth Report of the Postmaster General 1863 24/1 &13

London Postal Districts 24/1

Town Service 24/13

Suburban Service 24/13

## Eleventh Report of the Postmaster General 1864 25/18

Increase in Correspondence 25/18

# Twelfth Report of the Postmaster General 1865 26/2

Late Letters 26/2

## Fifteenth Report of the Postmaster General 1868 26/2

District Improvements 26/2

## Sixteenth Report of the Postmaster General 1870 89/16-17

Late Letter Fees 89/16

Foreign Service 89/17

## Twentieth Report of the Postmaster General 1876 89/18

Foreign and Colonial Service 89/18

## Alphabetical listing of the Reports of the Postmaster General:

Amount of Correspondence 1859 17/6

Chief Office status 1857 10/17

District Improvements 1859/1865 16/9 17/6 26/2

Divide London into Ten Districts 2/10 4/13-17 7/19 16/9 17/6 24/1

Excerpts 1856 9/15-16

Foreign and Colonial Service 20th Report of the PMG 1876 89/18

Foreign Service 16th Report of the PMG 1870 89/17

Improved Organisation 1854 1/10 21/11

Improvements in service 21/11

Increase in Correspondence 1864 25/18

International Exhibition 1862 23/5

Late Letters 26/2 89/16

London Deliveries 1857 10/17

London Postal Districts 1863 24/1&13

Merge General and District Letter Carriers 1855 2/10

Nomenclature of Streets 1/11 7/19

Number of letters 12/15-16

Prepaid Letters 1861 22/16

Registered Letters 21/12 22/16 23/5

Registered Mail 21/12

Social conditions of the workers 1857 11/16 14/17 15/18

St Martins le Grand 1859 16/9

Stamping Machines 17/6

Suburban Service 24/13

Success of Districts 1856 7/19

Town Service 24/13

Twopenny Post Ninth Report 1837 173/2-10

Valentines 1862 23/5

Wages, a discussion 2/12

#### ROLLER CANCELLATIONS

Roller Cancel 38/10 40/16

#### **ROYAL**

By Kings Messenger 1916-28 Mike Goodman 145/18-20 146/17-18 145/18-20

Court Mail by Sir Peter Horsley and Jean Farrugia 60/1-19

Hooded Royal Postmarks Simon Kelly 127/29-31

Prince George at Kew 1829 to 1839 133/4-9

Royal Postmarks Mike English 10/15 11/15 16/4

# **SKELETON CANCELLATIONS**

Acton Skeleton 1840 35/4

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

Peckham Skeleton 1911 87/7

Skeleton Postmarks 21/14 22/17 45/2

## **SLOGAN CANCELLATIONS**

British Goods are Best: the slogans 1925 to 1927 70/2-12

Columbia Slogan "Received From HM Ships No Charge to be Raised" R.A.Keneally 49/3 Daily Records and Orders EC & FS 1907-1921 Triple Issue 118 to 120/1-53 indexes 54-64

Daily Records and Orders EC 1921- 1939 Triple Issue 124-126/1-52 indexes 64-72

Feed the Guns with War Bonds Slogan WW1 46/5 49/18 R.A.Keneally 46/5

First Slogan cancels in UK 1917c R.A.Keneally 49/3

## SQUARED CIRCLE CANCELLATIONS

A much travelled card, eight squared circle cancels Maurice Barette 127/11-12

Collecting Squared Circles. A Review 86/18

Double Mystery from London Proof Book [Squared Circle] 1880 Maurice Barette 86/17-18

Early Squared Circles and Massey Trials by Maurice Barette 56/10-14

Greenwich S.O./S.E. Squared Circle Handstamp with a photograph Maurice Barette 65/19-20

Lombard Street Massey trials at 1802 to 1904 Holliday 17/10

London Fancy Geometric Postmarks a summary for the RPS by Maurice Barette 112/8-12

London Squared Circles by Reg Sanders 59/5

Proof Book Impressions of Squared Circles Ken Willington 28/10

Squared Circle "Proof Sheet" 1891 cancels Michael Goodman 129/34

Squared Circle coding Maurice Barette 65/7

Squared Circle Hammer Manufacturing & Recutting by Maurice Barette 80/2-15

Squared Circles of Mark Lane EC Maurice Barette 76/2-6

#### THREEPENNY POST

Circus 3P.Paid handstamp 1816 John Roberts 158/4

Croydon Common 3d post paid 1835 Arthur Moyles 153/7

Extending the Three Penny Post 1833 14/4

Receiving Houses of the Threepenny Post, 1837 - The Maps 53/2,& 15-24

#### TWOPENNY POST

"Riding Work" involved with the Twopenny Post 1803 145/2-5

1 py P PAID and Similar Stamps 55/18 66/10

Article Feb 1835 from Gentleman's Magazine 15/19

Article from "Morning Post" 1835 88/15

Beddington, Extension of the Twopenny Post to 1802 108/5

Branch Office costs 1831 162/8-9-10

Bromley Kent Franking and the Twopenny Post Michael English 9/7-8

Bye Posts 1811 23/11

Carshalton Receiver's Stamps 132/5-7

Carshalton, Extension of the Twopenny Post to 1802 108/5

Changes in the Twopenny Post September 1801 110/2-10

Charge cancelled 48/5

Charge stamps L643 1806 158/3

Chelsea Hospital & Postal Charges 40/4-6 108/7-9

Circus 3P.Paid handstamp 1816158/4

Complaint against a Two Penny Post receiving house 1806 116/4

Conditions For Conveying Twopenny Post Letter Bags 1839 81/14

Consolidation of the General and Two Penny Post Receiving Houses Dec 1838 114/13-14

Cost per mile with the Twopenny Post 145/2-5

Country and Town Rides Contract conditions 1840 81/14

Country Receiving Houses revised list John Adams 31/17 33/14

Country Receiving Office stamp L503 from Elkins collection 133/4-9

Country Sorting Offices Jay County Catalogue revisions 159/17-22

Country Sorting Offices 1830's 6/9-11 159/18 & 19

Croydon to Beddington Bye letters 146/4-7

Croydon, Extension of the Twopenny Post to 1802 108/5

Croydon, mis-sent to Andrew Ford 136/2-3

Deptford Twopenny post receiving houses Map Peter Bathe 51/15-18

Erasure Marks of the Twopenny post 33/20&22

FP Unrecorded 1795 & 1829/30 90/12 James Grimwood-Taylor 100/2-3

Franking & Twopenny Post 1808 46/10

Free Franks in the Twopenny Post Hess Collection 92/83-85

General Instructions to Country Letter Receivers 1820 49/17

General Instructions to Town Letter Receivers P.O. Notice 1829 82/15

General Receiving Houses 1840 9/10 19/2

Grace Dove collection Early letters and datestamps 101/5-19

Grace Dove collection Instructional marks Penny & Twopenny post 101/68-83

Greenwich Receivers salary increase 1805 133/2-4

Handstruck Erasure Marks 33/20 38/9 59/15&17

Hess Collection Free Franks in the Twopenny Post 92/83-85

Hess Collection Instructional Marks 92/77-82

Hess Collection 92/67-74

Hounslow Cross Post explanatory marks Peter Bathe 168/16-20

Ilford Delivery 1802 75/3

Inspectors Marks in the Twopenny Post 1836 73/12 76/26

Inspectors Marks in the Twopenny Post 1836 fake 73/12 76/26

Instruction to Letter Receivers 1838 61/20

Instructional & Charge marks Penny & Twopenny Posts Jay Catalogue revisions 161/15-26

Kensington Twopenny Post & General Post 16/4

Kew Prince George at 1829 to 1839 133/4-9

Kingsland Receivers salary increase 1805 133/2-4

Leadenhall penny post-paid 1837 66/11

Letter Carrier debts 1803 Francis Freeling 131/18-20 136/3-6

Letter Count in one week in Feb 1838 Michael English 17/5

Little Newport Street, Late Use 1851 75/6

London Twopenny Post 1801 – 1839 Jay County Catalogue revisions 159/9-22

London's Twopenny Post Relative Rarity Michael Champness 4/3-4

Map of Country Sorting Offices 159/18 & 19

Map of Twopenny Post Offices 159/9

Merging the General and Twopenny Post 1838 61/29 64/9

Mortlake a New Country Date Stamp John Sharp & Keith Romig 54/16

New Country Date Stamp Mortlake 1809 54/16

Newport Street 2 penny post paid Late Use 1851 75/6 Little

Ninth Report of the Commissioners 1837 merge Twopenny and General Post Letter Carriers 173/2-10

Petition about distress of the Letter Carriers 1837 14/4

PO Notice General and Two Penny Post Receiving Houses merged Dec 1838 114/13-14

Portsmouth Road Cross Post Twopenny Post Derek Holliday 31/12

Post Office notice Separate General Post from Twopenny Post Letters 1838 61/20

Receiving House, other business 1838 12/12

Receiving Houses within 3 miles of the General Post Office 1840 9/10-14

Redirected Mail Twopenny Post 36/4

Redirected mail in 1844 E.A.Quinn 13/12-14 19/1

Redirection charge in the 4d post period 50/3

Redirection of mail in the Twopenny post (repeat of 36/4-5) 172/17-19

Round Top Three Paid Stamp 1838 43/4 49/15

Ship Letter Carrier Peter Forrestier Smith 27/6 to12

Ship Letters David Lafford 39/3-4

Shooters Hill Twopenny Post Correction of a map Peter Bathe 34/14

Sloane Street Twopenny Post Receiver, critics of his behaviour 1804 145/7-10

Sydenham Receivers salary increase 1805 133/2-4

The G:P Transfer Stamp 61/9-10

Time Stamps of the Twopenny post Tony Thompson 63/16

Tottenham Receiver complaining of poor pay 1804 145/4-5

Town and country rides 81/14-17

Transfer Stamps 1817 from Presidents Order Book Vivian Sussex 40/3

Transfer Stamps to the General Post John Harrison 65/11

Traudl collection Twopenny Post: 139/79-101

Tribulations of a Twopenny Postman 1801 S.W.Shelton 13/2

Twelve Mile Limit 1834 25 Offices described 43/5-9

Two Penny Post Boundary Ray Jeal 129/19 131/13

Two Penny Post Extension (PO Notice of 1801) 72/2

Two Penny Post Extension, Pitt's Budget speech 1801 Reg Sanders 73/4

Twopenny Post John Adams 10/5-11

Twopenny Post and General Receiving Houses 1840 9/10 19/2

Twopenny Post Cross Post to the Portsmouth Road 31/12

Twopenny Post Instructional Marks Hess Collection 92/77-82

Twopenny Post L643 charge mark 1802 158/3

Twopenny Post Letter Count Feb 1838 17/5

Twopenny Post Map 34/14

Twopenny Post Ninth Report of the Commissioners 1837 173/2-10

Twopenny Post Office Feb 1835 15/19

Twopenny Post Office, from "Morning Post" 1835 88/15

Twopenny Post Redirected mail in 1844 13/12 19/1

Twopenny Post Round Top Three Paid Stamp 1838 43/4 49/15

Twopenny Post Ship Letter Carrier 27/6 to 12

Twopenny Post Ship Letters 20/10 39/3

Twopenny Post Shooters Hill 34/14-15

Twopenny Post Transfer Stamps 1817 40/3

Twopenny Post, meeting report 1972 10/5 to 11

Twopenny Post, Country Receiving Houses 31/17 33/14

Twopenny Post, The G:P Transfer Stamp 61/9-10

Twopenny Post: Traudl collection 139,144/79-101

Unpaid Mail in Uniform Penny Post in London 1839 J.Beverage 73/7

Unrecorded Westminster Office erasure mark 1803 109/2

Waddon, Extension of the Twopenny Post to 1802 108/5

Wallington, Extension of the Twopenny Post to 1802 108/5

Wood to brass handstamps in the Twopenny Post 45/9